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LUO Su, Chairman
EV/AE 13

Chairman’s Statement
EN X &

I am pleased to present the 2009 annual results of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa” or the “Company” and,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”).

For the year ended 31 December 2009, our Group continued
to deliver positive performance. Turnover was approximately
RMB1,871.5 million in 2009 (2008: RMB2,136.4 million). The
decrease in turnover was mainly due to the drop of average
market price of aluminium ingots during the year. We billed our
customers the processing fee with reference to the market price
of aluminium ingots, which has dropped by approximately 18.9%
to about RMB11,966 per tonne (value-added tax excluded) (2008:
RMB14,750 per tonne), while our processing fee remained steady
in 2009. Net profit attributable to equity holder of the Company
surged by 139.5% to RMB70.2 million compared with RMB29.3
million in 2008. The improvement in net profit was mainly
attributable to the improvement in gross profit margin, net gains of
aluminium future contracts and reduction in operating and finance
expenses in 2009.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.033 per ordinary share of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2009 (2008: RMBO0.021), subject to the approval
by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. The pay-out ratio is about 20% based on the net
profit in 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
E X &

Following the completion of the installation of the Asia-largest
surface anodizing machines, powder coating machines and
PVDF coating machines in the Sanshui factory, which enhanced
our surface finishing capability, our Group has equipped seven
new extrusion production lines, which will further enhance our
annual production capacity in 2010. In addition, our Group has
commenced the first phase construction of the two new production
bases in Sichuan Province and Jiangxi Province, further extending
our market coverage to South-West and South-East China.

With the gradual recovery of macro-economy and supportive
government policies continuously stimulating market demand, we
will execute our capacity expansion plan carefully and prudently in
line with the market trend. The annual designed production capacity
of the new Sanshui base is expected to reach 130,000 tonnes in
2010. The first phases of the two new plants in Sichuan Province
and Jiangxi Province will be completed by the end of 2010 each
with an annual designed production capacity of 50,000 tonnes. The
ultimate capacity per annum of these two plants are 100,000 tonnes
each. It is expected that the total production capacity of the Group
will be able to hit 300,000 tonnes per annum by 2014, further
strengthening Xingfa’s leading industry position in China.

Being a market leader, Xingfa won the tender for several landmark
projects in 2009, including electricity conductive aluminium
profiles for metro locomotive of Guangzhou-Foshan train,
Shenzhen International Commerce Center, the headquarters of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
Kingkey Finance Center Plaza in Shenzhen and Microsoft Asia-
Pacific R&D Group Headquarter etc.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL% 85 3% % it A B 2 v

--.'----------------------------

Annual Report 2009 4 #t

T8 = 7K i [t 52 FI % 26 4 B P B K 22 3R THT 7R 9 )
IR WL 8 R g o RS 8 A E A0 DA 4R e 2 THT U B A
18 o AR S 1 L 5 T A 2 R R R A AR L TG
M LUE— A T — A A ERE
B Ah > A SR B Je 0 )1 8 % v 1 s AR
B 2 B — W R M T B R R — P PR
o [ VY F R SR L

Wi 25 7 B A T 128 25 15 ok B JBURT AR i IO -5 28 0 3
T3 3R > A [ AS AL B T 25 8 24N O AR B
EERER R T8 o T B A = kA E R
FAE B AE FE AE 55 130,000M8 o A7 73 V0 1| 5 e 1174
B A R 2 5 — ) TR AR
JESERL > % H 2 s wHE & BE £550,000M8 o 7 8 5 3%
4% H 2 B #AF FE E 55 100,000 o T8 W] A 4E 1] 2
A PE RE K AT Y T — DU A HiTRE 2£300,000M - 3 —
A [ LB AE P B ) AT SRR A

LB By 51T i R F U RLZ R AR I
AR > B 2 SR — 1L S B o 1 R R
o T BE ~ TR P~ 7 i O R R AR
P~ R I e 4l v B 85 % Bl R T A
RERSFIHHE -



—

Annual Report 2009 4 7

Chairman’s Statement
E R 8

With our ultimate goal to improve the gross profit margin and hence 7 7% 4 8 B 2 e £ B A8 & ol B AR 46w 38 n
the bottom line growth, Xingfa has investigated its product mixing ¥ - & Ut B 85 £ 0F 5% HC 78 o 45 B 4 & R s > 4R
strategy to enhance the sales of higher margin products. Together with = B A = B F R 2 ) 2 85 85 8 - IBFE ALl 2 5%
our advanced R&D capability, commitment to quality, established — HEWFEERE ) ~ PR & 2 AR ~ 76 H B Ko o O 57
extensive and stable sales networks in the PRC and overseas, we are i 12 X %5 8 &5 45 > AR LA fF.0 0 P E &2
confident to capture more market shares both in the PRC and globally, — BRI 5 K 2 T 35 0388 > J B SRS 20 o /= ] 3 -
bringing in greater returns to our shareholders.

On behalf of Xingfa, I would like to take this opportunity to thank 4% A GH#E A% & QR BLEE D BRI AR L f &
every member of the Board, management and staff for contributing £ {7 B¢ B ~ & B g [ B 138 AC4E [ 2 ek o7 1
the success of the Group. Furthermore, I would like to express < Bk > A ANIRGEILE AL 2 BF - EE B4
my appreciation to the customers and business partners and KR —H PAA 2 LR RN

shareholders for their continuing support.

LUO Su, Chairman S B
Hong Kong, 31 March 2010 B, E-FFE=H=+—H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GRS

Review of Operations

We are one of the leading aluminium profiles manufacturers in
the PRC and our products are principally applied as construction
and industrial materials. Currently, we are the largest provider of
electricity conductive aluminium profile for metro vehicles in the
PRC. Leveraging on our advanced R&D capability and commitment
to quality, our Group has established extensive and stable sales
networks in the PRC and overseas for the past 20 years. Our Group
was awarded as the No.l of the Top-Ten National Aluminium
Profiles Enterprises by the China Non-Ferrous Metals Fabrication
Industrial Association (“CNFA”) in 2003, and such status was re-
confirmed by CNFA in February 2008.

In 2009, our Group won the tender for several landmark projects,
including electricity conductive aluminium profiles for metro
locomotive of Guangzhou-Foshan train, Shenzhen International
Commerce Center, the headquarters of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, Kingkey Finance Center Plaza
in Shenzhen and Microsoft Asia-Pacific R&D Group Headquarter etc.

Turnover

Turnover and sales volume recorded approximately RMB1,871.5
million and 94,400 tonnes respectively for the year ended 31
December 2009 (2008: 2,136.4 million and 95,200 tonnes). The
decrease in turnover was mainly due to the drop of average market
price of aluminium ingots during the year.

We billed our customers the processing fee with reference to
the market price of aluminium ingots, which has dropped by
approximately 18.9% to about RMB11,966 per tonne (value-added
tax excluded) (2008: RMB 14,750 per tonne), while our processing
fee remained steady in 2009.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Our sales volume also remained steady in 2009. Despite the
negative impacts bought by the financial turmoil in the fourth
quarter in 2008 which caused the drop of sales volume in the first
half of 2009 by 12%, our Group’s sales orders recovered quickly
and managed to meet the annual sales target of approximately
94,400 tonnes in 2009 (2008: 95,200 tonnes). In particular,
the sales volume of construction aluminium profiles increased
by 16.6% to 72,850 tonnes (2008: 62,483 tonnes) after the
enhancement of production capacity of surface finishing in our
Sanshui factory, which offset the decrease in sales volume of
industrial aluminium profiles by 34.2% to 21,524 tonnes in 2009
(2008: 32,733 tonnes).

The following table sets forth our turnover and its percentage of
turnover by product category for the years ended 31 December
2008 and 2009:

o B B 3 B

ATRBIE AL HEERTRE - RE S
Pl JRL B A T NS U Ze A B T R
FEJUAE AR TR 12% 0 75 R EAREE
2 H T R T R TR ILF
ZAF S HAZ > 4 594,400 ( T E AR
95,200M8 ) o o = 7K i i 1 o G 3 v i A A
eI f% > MM 28 E L F16.6%%72,850
ME ( FFE )\ AE D 62,483MF) o KB L2 5 AL 8
BN EK34.2% % ZBFIUE 2 21,5240 ( ZFFN
4 1 32,733MF) Z BRI o

TREINBE -FENER _ELTIES A
b BB R E SRR 2 R
Gy

2009 2008
“EZNAE CERRNAE
RMB’000 % RMB 000 %
AR¥ T % ANRWTI %
Manufacture and sale of A X AR R B
aluminium profiles
— Construction aluminium profiles — @AM 1,353,779 723 1,370,729 64.2
— Industrial aluminium profiles — T2 366,115 19.6 654,593 30.6
1,719,894 91.9 2,025,322 94.8
Others (Note) Hotty ( Bt 7E) 151,587 8.1 111,046 5.2
Total At 1,871,481 100.0 2,136,368 100.0
Note:  Our Group’s other turnover represented turnover generated from Mz - <4 [ FoAth 75 SE 5 4G 25 M 85 65 #R 02 - BEEL

the manufacture and sale of aluminium panels, moulds and spare
parts and the provision of processing services.

TR > LA B AR A i RS T AR 2 R
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o B e g3

Our Group’s turnover by geographical segments during the years AEBMREE XL /NEK —ZERIJIFE+ A

ended 31 December 2008 and 2009 are as follows: =+ — H IHFEE s # o 2 EEREWR
2009 2008
“EEE TRE A
RMB’000 % RMB 000 %
AR T % ANRBFI %
The PRC H 1,718,429 91.8 1,938,424 90.7
North America b3 3,254 0.2 46,110 2.2
Europe el 11,723 0.6 12,196 0.6
Hong Kong il 39,302 2.1 76,551 3.6
Asia Pacific (other than the PRC AR Ml b (AR K

and Hong Kong) kR Ah) 40,490 2.2 51,680 2.4
Others oAty 58,283 3.1 11,407 0.5
Total Hat 1,871,481 100.0 2,136,368 100.0

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009, domestic sales #%E _~EFX/NFER _EZIINFE T+ A =+—HI
in the PRC in aggregate accounted for approximately 90.7% and  4F B » 1 [0 [5] Ay 61 55 A0 30 Ak A< 42 148 25l 49
91.8% of our Group’s turnover respectively. 90.7% &% 91.8% °

Our Group also exports directly to the United States, Europe A4 [8] & fh 78 B # H 0 % 35 [ - B B Ho A =
and other Asian countries. For the years ended 31 December Y EI%K o i & — XX NAE K XX IJUE T H
2008 and 2009, non domestic sales in aggregate accounted — — 1 — H IL4FEE > IF (A & SRR AG A 42 [0 48 2658
for approximately 9.3% and 8.2% of our Group’s turnover  HI#79.3% %8.2% °

respectively.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL% 85 3% % it A B 2 v
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The following table sets forth the sales volume and average
selling prices of our principal products during the years ended 31

Management Discussion and Analysis

o B B 3 B

RN AL EEE G RERE TR
ERNAET AZ+—HIHEEZ 88 T e

December 2008 and 2009: 1 :
2009 2008 Change in %
ZERJE ZRE A 55 0 %
Construction aluminium 2 gH R b
profiles
Revenue (RMB 000) W (ANRYFT ) 1,353,779 1,370,729 (1)
Quantity (fonnes) g () 72,850 62,483 17
Average selling price per tonne g WS- A
(RMB) (ARWITL) 18,583 21,938 (15)
Industrial aluminium profiles TR SRR M
Revenue (RMB 000) R (ANRMET ) 366,115 654,593 (44)
Quantity (fonnes) g () 21,524 32,733 (34)
Average selling price per tonne g WS- A
(RMB) (ARWITL) 17,010 19,998 (15)
Total HEE
Revenue (RMB 000) R (ANRYET ) 1,719,894 2,025,322 (15)
Quantity (fonnes) g () 94,374 95,216 )
Average selling price per tonne g WS- A
(RMB) (ARWITL) 18,224 21,271 (14)
Cost of sales 8 B gl AR

Our cost of sales decreased by approximately 14.1% to
RMB1,684.1 million (2008: RMB1,961.1 million) which was
mainly due to the drop of average market price of aluminium

AEEZHEERATE®LY14.122 AR
M1,684,100,0007C ( = FF )U4E - AR W
1,961,100,0007C) > £ F A4 N8R 8E 2 T HE N

ingots during the year. 7
2009 2008 Change in %
CEEBAE CEEAE 8%
Average market price of aluminium 7§ 2 °F- 3 i {8
ingots (VAT included) (RMB) (LG (B )
(AEHIT) 14,000 17,258 (19)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% % it A PR 2 ¥
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o LI i B g3 i

Gross profit and gross profit margin
Gross profit margin improved to 10.0% (2008: 8.2%) whilst sale

to production ratio at 97.0% in 2009 (2008: 99.9%).

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of our

aluminium profiles:

—

Annual Report 2009 4

LA 5B A R

B EEILF BRI R ETFE10.0% ( FEFE N
A 82%) o T EHEEFE A H497.0% (& E
JNAE99.9%) o

TR AL TR 2 BRI

2009 2008

SRR —BE N

Average gross profit margin P EH R 10.0% 8.2%
— Industrial aluminium profiles — T 2E R B 4 17.0% 13.4%

— Construction aluminium profiles — S £ B A 7.3% 5.7%

The improvement in gross profit margin was mainly due to the
following factors:

1. We have concluded more sales order of electricity
conductive aluminium profiles for metro-locomotive of
Guangzhou-Foshan train in 2009, which has relative higher
processing fee than other industrial materials.

2. Following the enhancement of surface finishing capacity
through the installation of the Asia-largest anodising,
powder coating and PVDF coating production lines at
Guangdong Sanshui factory in the second half of 2009,
better economy of scales were further enhanced.

3. The equipment utilisation ratio was further improved to
80.3% (2008: 79.4%).

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B%§ 85 3% % it A BR 2 v
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other revenue and other net income/(loss)

Our Group recorded other revenue and other net income of
approximately RMB14.0 million in 2009 as compared to other
net loss of approximately RMB4.7 million in 2008. This variance
was mainly due to the net gains of aluminium future contracts
of RMB7.7 million in 2009 as compared to the net losses of
aluminium future contracts of RMB19.3 million in 2008. It
comprises the following items:

o B B 3 B

Hfth e 28 B H A~ (5 18) 3 8

AL A BT U AT At 55 B EL A A TR
A N 14,000,00070 » 1 7Y = F %\ AF gk A5 H
Al 5 18 1 8 49 A 4,700,000 © I 25 B R
A T IUFE S S A BRI A I AR
#7,700,0000C > T — &% )\ AF #3114 A 4 Bl 8015
T 48 1 48 A\ R 519,300,000 C BT 80 HALEE R A4

TE

e

2009 2008
ZEFE ZERE N
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREF NRIET T
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) 17 4E 4 fil T 5 O 582 Bl 2 R 8 Bl
of derivative financial instruments Wegs/ (E8) F 5
— aluminium future contracts —HmNEEH 7,701 (19,342)
— foreign exchange forward contracts — 41t 2 A A 497 (580)
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale WS AR EHEEE IS = 11,637
Loss on disposal of property, B2 B Bk A e 1R
plant and equipment (240) -
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) ANENL %5 (518 14 151 (6,788)
Interest income B A 4,430 6,622
Government grants ISP 48 ] 2,194 2,927
Rental income THE WA 20 232
Others HoAts (790) 548
Other revenue and other net HoAth i 26 K HAb g A7 (518
income/(loss) R 13,963 (4,744)

Distribution costs

Distribution costs reduced by approximately 19.7% to RMB29.9
million in 2009 (2008: RMB37.3 million), while our distribution
costs as a percentage of turnover also reduced to 1.6% (2008:
1.7%). Such decrease was consistent with the decrease in turnover
during the year.

g WA

W EEIVEARE B Z 5 8RR WD £119.7%
£ AR %29,900,00000 ( ~FFE/NAF: ARK
37,300,0007G ) - M ASSE [ oy S A G & 26 2 H
TR (ZFFNFE1.7%) - B RER
LS R PR S5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o B e g3

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses recorded RMBS58.7 million in 2009,
which was 5.1% lower than that in 2008 (2008: RMB61.9 million)
and our administrative expenses as a percentage of turnover
remained at 3.1% (2008: 2.9%). Such decrease was mainly due
to the absence of an one-off IPO expenses of RMB9.61 million
which incurred in 2008 but partially offset by the increase in pre-
operating expenses of RMB2.5 million for our Jiangxi Yichun and
Sichuan Chengdu new plants in 2009.

Finance costs

Finance costs reduced by approximately 6.9% to RMB31.0
million in 2009 (2008: RMB33.3 million) as a result of the drop of
average interest rate during the year.

Profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and the net
profit margin

In 2009, our Group recorded profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of approximately RMB70.2
million (2008: RMB29.3 million) while the net profit margin was
also improved to 3.8% (2008: 1.4%). The improvement in net
profit margin was mainly attributable to the improvement in gross
profit margin, net gains of aluminium future contracts and savings
in operating and finance expenses in 2009.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o B B 3 B

Analysis of Financial Position R D 4 B
Current and quick ratios By B B Lk R
The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s current | F i FI AL Fjis BT /NFE K ZEEIJLFE T+
and quick ratios as at 31 December 2008 and 2009: A=+ —H 2 Rs) Ko s) b S
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
/A 2=y S e N
+ZA=+—H +ZHA=+—H
Current Ratio (Note) WE R (K ) 1.08 1.21
Quick Ratio (Note) B LA (AL 0.86 0.95

Notes: Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided 77 i B) Hb R DL 4 2 W B & 78 AE BR DL Eh & &

by the total current liabilities at the end of the year. HEFI -
Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the R By LU AR DA A& 2 R ) AR R R A
total current assets and the inventories divided by the total current K DA it ) B B A -

liabilities at the end of the year.

Both current and quick ratio remained at a healthy level in 2009. R FIUF AL 2 ) LR T ) LR
TRIFABTRE -
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Gearing ratio

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2008 and 2009:

Annual Report 2009 4 #

R R

TNREIIALEPR —FT/NFELZFTIFA+
H=1t—HZAfERHgE:

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

RZZIAE s AN

+ZA=+—H +-H=+—H

Gearing ratio (Note) BB (M) 45.0% 39.4%

Note:  Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total loans and borrowings

divided by total assets and multiplied by 100%.

Our Group assumed more bank borrowings in 2009 to finance our
capacity expansion plan at our new Jiangxi Yichun and Sichuan
Chengdu plants.

Inventory Turnover Days
The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s

inventory turnover days during the two years ended 31 December
2008 and 2009:

B8 L R DA RO B R DL A E T R DU
100% %1 &

Mt -

ALEFA R LA ARG 2 AT E 8 DUBEY
P8 VG A ) T R

7 8
TEBINAEHEE FF/NFE K EFIF
T A = HAR WA AR 2 AR A

For the year ended 31 December
BEF A=+ —HIL4EE

Inventory turnover days (Note)

Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending inventory balance before provision for the
years divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied
by 365 days.

Note:

Inventories balance as at the respective years ended 31 December
2008 and 2009 represents our raw materials, work in progress and
the unsold finished goods.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A B 2 v

2009 2008
ZEREHE TEENAE
17 & Jo e o o (M At ) 48 41

175 JEH T DA TR AR I 2 B A 2 AR AR A%
AT A T 2 BUSR DUAE TR 2 B B A S A
FeLh3esH w5t o

WEE-EFZZNFER -FEEZNEF A =1+—H
IR 2 A B A8 B R RE - 7280 Bk
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o B B 3 B

More products were produced at the year end of 2009 in order to AN “F R IJUFAFIE » B0 A B DU AT
fill up the secured sales order to be delivered in the first quarter & —F —ZF T BT E T BT H - H
of 2010. Such increase in inventories balance led to the slightly  f7 £ &% ik 3 = E BUAF & 0 gy o

increase in inventory turnover days.
Debtors’ Turnover days JRE W R 5% i R

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s debtors R FI AL FH &k F = FF )\ K FE I
turnover days during the two years ended 31 December 2008 and 1 3 = - — H 1F {8 4F J3 22 M i % 2w B 0 g

2009: 2
For the year ended 31 December
HET A=+ —HILEE
2009 2008
CEENAE “EENE
Debtors’ turnover days (Note) JHRE Wi R R R K (M ) 86 70

Note: Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the Mz - MEMUIRFGE MR LLAE N 2 AF4) JAF 48 2 38 55 I

beginning and ending balance of trade and bills receivables for the Wi 3T e RE WIS U 44 B 2 P S BB LA AR I 2 7
years divided by turnover during the years multiplied by 365 days. JERT AR LA36S H T -

The debtors’ turnover days were slightly increased to 86 days in i & JUAF » A4 B 2 B i R 3K Re IR 01 st =
2009 due to more sales orders were concluded in the forth quarter 86 H > J5 EZE h MM BT N4> HELFHE
of 2009 as compared to that in 2008. R A I 258 T -

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5% 85 3% % Bt A PR 2 W)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Creditors’ Turnover days JE A W ka0

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s creditors T R F A £ F 4k & = FF )\AE K ZFEF I
turnover days during the two years ended 31 December 2008 and 1 3 = H 1k W 4F J3 2 AT AR 5 mc B 1A Ak

2009: P
For the year ended 31 December
BET_H=1—HIL4EE
2009 2008
“EFNE ZEEINF
Creditors’ turnover days (Note) JEAST B 3 RT BR K B (M AE) 34 26

Note: Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the — Mff7F - FEATWREGEE MR M DLAF ) 2 4] K AR 4 2 38 5 I

beginning and ending balance of trade and bills payables for the ASF T JRE AT S A B 2 T SR AR TR 2 B
years divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied B A S TR LA36S H RHEE o
by 365 days.

More raw materials were procured at the year end of 2009 in view A48 [t —ZFF JUAF 7K 58 2 JRUM RE DL RE AT —
of the increase in secured sales order in the first quarter of 2010. & —ZFHF 5 — T4 N 2 77 $E s B 5T B - it —
Relative higher balances of trade and bills payables stood at the — ZEZ JUHFAIE 2 28 5 ME AT 3CH J AT SR 95 45 8 A
year end of 2009 which led to the slightly increase in creditors’ [ AH 338 22 > JE 5] % 35T BR300 73 38 o

turnover days.
Cash flow Bl B
The table below summarises our Group’s cash flow during the two T R M A 4L H 4k & = FF )\AE K ZFF LA

years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009: TZA=+—H AR B

For the year ended 31 December
BRET A=+ —HILEE

2009 2008
“BEAE CRFAR
RMB’million RMB 'million

AR # T N B T

Net cash generated from/(used in) WAEEW I, () B4
operating activities A 150.1 (30.9)
Net cash used in investing activities & & ) B B
R i} (320.5) (247.8)
Net cash generated from financing il O ) BT A B R A
activities 235.3 347.3

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v
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Management Discussion and Analysis

We generally finance our operations through a combination
of shareholders’ equity, internally generated cash flows, bank
borrowings and our cash and cash equivalents. Our Directors
believe that on a long-term basis, our liquidity will be funded from
operations and, if necessary, additional equity financing or bank

borrowings.
Capital expenditures

Capital expenditure was used for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayment. In 2009, our Group’s capital
expenditures were approximately RMB85 million. The significant
capital expenditures during the year were mainly for acquisition
of plant and equipment for the Guangdong Sanshui factory and
acquisition of lease prepayment for the Sichuan Chengdu and
Jiangxi Yichun new plants.

Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2009, our Group’s loans and borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB847.44 million (2008:
RMB559.33 million).

Banking facilities and guarantee

As at 31 December 2009, the banking facilities of our Group
amounted to RMB1,267.22 million (2008: RMB879.35 million).

Certain banking facilities amounted to RMB328.00 million (2008:
RMB773.00 million) were guaranteed by certain related parties
of which approximately RMB268.80 million were utilised (2008:
RMB511.09 million).

Pledge of assets
Certain assets of our Group have been pledged to secure the bank

borrowings of our Group. For details, please refer to notes 13 and
14 in notes to the consolidated financial statements.

o B B 3 B

A AR T — i 7 A e ARORE A~ R EE AR 2 B A
BORITEEAALE B G LB SEFEYIER
BHEEC -HBEGME RENSAEE R
B Ao 18 R (A 7 ) BAN AR &
ATHE -

A X

A B S Y A WO 2~ R B Rk A B TR AT AL
o EFEIAF AL EARM LB AR
#85,000,0007T © 4N 2 KEEE AR L Ty EEAE B
S0 B AR = KR Lt A B R B A - DA R S A |
B BT PG B R S TE A AR 4 e

ok KA 5

RoEEREFT A=+ —H o REEZ AR N
B4 B B 847,440,000 ( —EE AE A
B #559,330,0007C) ©

SRAT i BE WU SR

A EEREFT A=+ —H o RNEEZBITE
B B N H1,267,220,00070 ( —FEFE4E A
[ #5879,350,0007T ) ©

AR #328,000,00000 ( =& & )\4E: AR
773,000,0007C) 2 # T ERATfE EHEECHEE T
T e H A A N R 268,800,000 2 #) H
(ZFFZ A NR¥ES511,090,000T) °

& Ak
ALEEETEECMMIEAAEBRTHEZ

W fh o HBFERE B2 M S M B R M 513 K%
14 -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GRS

Capital commitment

As at the close of business on 31 December 2009, we had capital
commitments contracted but not provided for in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB343.40 million (2008: RMB76.39 million).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2009, our Group did not provide any guarantee
in respect of liabilities of any company not being a member of our
Group. Our Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2009.

Market Risk

We are, in the normal course of business, exposed to market risk
such as foreign currencies risk, interest rate risk, commodity
price risk on aluminium, credit risk and liquidity risk. Our risk
management strategy aims to minimise the adverse effects of these

risks on our financial performance.
Foreign Currency Risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations in the PRC, RMB, to which they relate.
The transactions in foreign currency are primarily denominated
in USD. The Group currently does not have a policy to exercise
fair value hedges on foreign currency risk as the impact of foreign
currency on the Group’s total cost of sales are minimal. However,
management monitors foreign currency exposure to ensure that
the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level and will consider
hedging significant transactions should the need arise.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that over 50% of its
exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings is on a fixed
rate basis. The interest rates and terms of repayment of the
Group’s loans and borrowings are disclosed in note 29 in notes to

the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Commodity Price Risk on aluminium

Aluminium ingots are the major raw material of the Group’s
products which account for approximately 70% of total cost of
sales in 2008 and 2009. Fluctuations on commodity price of
aluminium will have a significant impact on the Group’s earnings,
cash flows as well as the value of the inventories. The Group uses
its future contracts traded on the Shanghai Future Exchange to
reduce its risks arising from fluctuations in aluminium price. The
Group enters futures based on the inventories on hand, expected
usage of aluminium and sales requirements. The Group considers
that it is not cost effective to maintain a highly effective hedge on
transaction basis.

Generally, the Group enters into futures contracts if the sales
order of a particular customer exceed 25 tonnes. Given the
Group applied its future contracts in the above-mentioned way,
however, such application does not meet the definition of hedge
accounting under IFRSs. Hence, the Group has not adopt hedge
accounting. The notional contract value and the related terms of
the commodity futures contracts of the Group are summarised as

below:

The market value of futures contracts is based on quoted market
price at the balance sheet date. The unrealised holding results on
the futures contracts re-measured at fair value were approximately
losses of RMB557,000 and gains of RMB879,000 as at 31
December 2008 and 2009 respectively and the changes in the fair
value were recognised in the consolidated income statements.

o B B 3 B

UES N

A AR ] R BB SR ik DR R AR 509 2 i B 1) 4 5 ) J
Bt 1 T8 A M) < o A 4 SR AT B S A B 2 A R
T 38 T T A e S 5 R R 294 R

S5V i (EUAS L B

A TN B R T IUAEHI BRSE AR
JEE iy < T JEORE > A AR U 2970% © 8 7
mhER BB B AL AN B R kR
BEAEREE - AEEE LBNELSTHE
ST B A > B B (A D B 2 A 2 B o A
SEFAR IR BLA A7 18 TV T o 1 ZORMETT
WESEI RS G o AR By > WA TS B AT
S IRUIN R RE PR €

— M > i IR A BT 2 8 AR AT R R A 25
RS B AT 5L S SE 1 B 40 o iR AR SR B LA Bk
B g 2 5 4 > B BT & A7 5 B
SRS i At Y S 3ES Ioh R 2 R 3 > oA 2 R I i R
A EE o AL T A B A A 2 A AT (E
B R AR

WESGHATHEULE WS RERE - R FE
NER “BERFEL A=+ —H  HATHEE
Rt EZ BB A REE 2 ARG SR
# Ay 18 N R 557,0007T M i 35 A R #5879,000
TG > T 231 588 i % 5 Wi i 32 R R RR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer
or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s

receivables from customers and other receivables.
Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics
of the Group’ customer base, including the default risk of the
industry and country in which customers operate, has less of an
influence on credit risk. Approximately 5% to 10% of the Group’s
revenue is attributable to sales transactions with a single customer
for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new
customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before
the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions
are offered. The Group’s review includes external ratings,
where available. Credit limit is established for each customer
which represents the maximum open amount without requiring
approval from the Board of Directors; these limits are reviewed
annually. Customers that fail to meet the Group’s benchmark
creditworthiness may transact with the Group on a prepayment
basis. The Group chases the customers to settle the due balances
and monitors the settlement progress on an ongoing basis.

The maximum exposure of credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
balance sheets, including derivative financial instruments. Except
for the financial guarantees given by the Group as disclosed in
note 32 in notes to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report, the Group does not provide guarantees which would
expose the Group to the credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees at the respective
balance sheet dates is disclosed in note 32 in notes to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents
its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other
receivables. The main component of this allowance is a specific
loss component established for groups of similar assets in respect
of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. The
collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of

payment statistics for similar financial assets.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long term. The Group use activity-based costing
to cost its products, which assists it in monitoring cash flow
requirements. Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient
cash on demand to meet expected operation expenses for a period
of 11 days, including the servicing of financial obligations;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances
that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.
In addition, the Group maintains the lines of credit to mitigate
liquidity risk with the maximum banking facilities and amounts
utilised at the respective balance sheet dates are as disclosed in
note 29 to notes to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2009, our Group employed a total of 2,776
full time employees in the PRC which included management
staff, technicians, salespersons and workers. In 2009, our Group’s
total expenses on the remuneration of employees was RMB69.40
million and represents 3.7% of the turnover of our Group.
Our Group’s emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employees, which will be reviewed
regularly every year. Apart from the provident fund scheme
(according to the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees) or state-managed
retirement pension scheme (for the PRC employees) and medical
insurance, discretionary bonuses and employee share options
are also awarded to employees according to the assessment of
individual performance.
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Prospects

With our continuous development in our Guangdong Sanshui
factory, further enhancement of our economy of scales and gross
profit margin are expected to be seen in the near future. In the
meantime, following the installation of the Asia-largest surface
anodising, powder coating and PVDF coating production lines
to enhance the surface finishing capability, coupled with the
establishment of seven additional new extrusion production lines,
our Group is ready to capture the expected uprising demand in
2010.

Apart from our new Guangdong Sanshui factory, we will continue
to carry out our production capacity expansion plan in other
parts of the PRC. With the two new production bases in Chengdu
City of Sichuan Province and Yichun City of Jiangxi Province
commenced their first phase development, it is expected that an
annual production capacity of 50,000 tonnes of aluminium profiles

of each plant are to be added to our Group by the end of 2011.

Looking forward, our Group will strive to capture the market
opportunities throughout the PRC. Capacity growth ahead will be
carefully and prudently blueprinted in line with the market trend,
with the ultimate goal to expand the designed annual production
capacity of each of the two new bases to 100,000 tonnes and
to extend our market coverage to South-West and South-East
China. Together with the production capacity expansion in our
Guangdong Sanshui factory, the total capacity of aluminium
profiles is planned to be reaching 300,000 tonnes per annum by
2014.
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Directors and Senior Management

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. LUO Su (##) , aged 71, is the chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and founder of the Group. He has over
18 years of experience in the aluminium profile industry. He is
responsible for the overall management, operations, financial
aspects, corporate directions and strategies of the Group. Mr. LUO
Su is qualified as an |2 £8 £ fifi (industrial economist) based on
his previous experience with Nanhai Xingfa Aluminium Profiles
Factory. Mr. LUO Su was certified as an outstanding entrepreneur
of private enterprise by the People’s Government of Foshan City
in 2003, an outstanding entrepreneur by the China Non Ferrous
Metals Industry Association in 2005 and received an outstanding
Guangdong patent award for the patent titled 4 4 &5 ¢ [l
KT #TEES % %5 B (aluminium alloy flat ingot horizontal heat-
top casting device) in 2005. Mr. LUO Su was a deputy to the 12th
Session of the People’s Congress of Foshan City for a term of five
years from 2003 to 2008. Mr. LUO Su is the father-in-law of Mr.
LIAO Yuqing, an executive Director.

Mr. LUO Riming (£ H B]) , aged 53, is an executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company. He is responsible for
the procurement and utilisation of equipment and infrastructure
for the business of the Group. Mr. LUO Riming is also responsible
for the procurement of raw materials and the assessment and
selection of suitable suppliers. He has over 15 years of experience
in the aluminium profile industry. Mr. LUO Riming joined the
Group since the establishment of the Group in 1980s. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. LUO Riming has worked at Nanhai
Hardware Factory (township enterprise), Nanhai Power Supply
Bureau, Nanzhuang Electric Appliance and Furniture Factory,
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory and Xingfa
Group. Mr. LUO Riming obtained a bachelor’s degree in
economic management by the Guangdong Radio & TV University
in 1998.
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HELRBREHRANER

Mr. LIAO Yuqing (EEB) , aged 41, is an executive Director.
He is also the supervisor of the sales and marketing department
in charge of the sales and marketing activities of the Group and
is responsible for the planning, development, implementation
and evaluation of the marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Liao
joined the Group in January 1993. Prior to that, Mr. Liao was
in the military between 1986 to 1991. Mr. Liao worked at the
Agricultural Bank of China Jiujiang Branch from 1991 to 1992.
Mr. Liao is the son-in-law of Mr. LUO Su, the chairman of the
Group and an executive Director.

Mr. LAW Yung Koon (£ f &) , aged 52, is an executive
director. He is responsible for the sales and marketing of our
products in overseas market. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Law was the general manager of Hang Fat Aluminium Profiles
Company Limited, which was the sole distributor of the Group
in Hong Kong and Macau and one of the suppliers of aluminium
ingots.

Mr. WANG Zhihua ( E&#) | aged 39, is an executive Director.
Mr. Wang is responsible for managing capital for operations,
human resources, promotion and advertising schemes for products
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in January 2003, from
1992 to 1997, Mr. Wang worked at Guanglian Industrial Co., Ltd.
and the Guangzhou Branch of Huaxia Securities Co., Ltd. Mr.
Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in statistics from the Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics in 1992. Mr. Wang was
certified as a securities agent for the period from September 2001
to September 2004 by the Securities Association of China.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Mo (BE B ), aged 45, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed on 29 February 2008. He has
been a practising lawyer in the PRC since 1993 and has been
a partner of Goldsun Law Firm ({5 W & A fili 5 %5 1) since
1998. Mr. Chen was admitted as a lawyer by the Department
of Justice of Guangdong Province in June 1989 and obtained
SR AR &A% (Third Grade Lawyer) from the Department of
Personnel of Guangdong Province in 1999. Mr. Chen graduated
from the Political Education Department of South China Normal
University (#EF fili {5 K 2%) in 1986. He has been granted the
CHERITE S B H R EHEMKTEE) (Certificate of Engaging
in Securities Law Business) jointly by the Ministry of Justice and
China Securities Regulatory Commission in 1996, the {f R
HEBBHCEEMRR EILEET EHKEE) (Certificate of
Engaging in Delimitation of Property Rights of Collective Science
and Technology Enterprises) jointly by the Ministry of Justice, the
Ministry of Science and Technology of the People’s Republic of
China and the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council in 1998, and the I Ti/A A
Mg 37 SRR I AL £ 78D (Certificate of Completion of Training
on Independent Directors of Listed Companies) by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission and the School of Management
of Fudan University jointly in 2001.

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (% %), aged 47, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed on 29 February 2008. Mr. Ho
is a senior partner of a Hong Kong law firm where he acts as the
head of that firm’s litigation and also the principal representative
of that firm’s Guangzhou office. Mr. Ho was awarded the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws by the University of Hong Kong
in 1986 and obtained his Bachelor of Laws degree from the Essex
Institute of Higher Education (now known as Anglia Ruskin
University) in 1987. Mr. Ho was first admitted as a solicitor
in Hong Kong in 1988. He was also admitted as a solicitor in
Singapore in 1995, England and Wales in 1997, and has been
appointed as a China-appointed attesting officer since early 2006.
Mr. Ho has over 20 years of legal practice experience.
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HELRBREHANER

On the community services aspect, Mr. Ho currently sits in the
Law Society of Hong Kong as its Vice-President and Council
Member. Besides, he was nominated as the Chairman of Duty
Lawyer Service Council in 2005, Council member of the Duty
Lawyer Service Council since 2002 and a member of other
various government and advisory boards, such as the Legal
Aid Services Council; the Board of Trustees and the Council
of Lord Wilson Heritage Trust; the Costs Committee under
S74(1)(d) of the Legal Practitioners Ordinance (Cap. 159); the
Transport Advisory Committee of the Government of HKSAR.
At the same time, Mr. Ho was also appointed as a Council
member of Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in China-
Guangdong, an Arbitrator of Wuhan International Arbitration
Court. Formerly, he served as a Co-opted Councillor of Heung
Yee Kuk, the New Territories; a director, 3rd vice-chairman and
chairman of the Board of Directors of Yan Oi Tong for the years
1993/1994,1994/1995,1995/1996 respectively.

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy (b3 ) , aged 45, is an
independent non-executive Director appointed on 29 February
2008. He is an associate member of various professional
organisations, namely The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries
and The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
obtained his master’s degree in professional accounting from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam has over 20 years
of experience in the accounting, banking and finance sectors and
currently is working as the General Manager of Viking Logistics
Limited, a private company which is an airfreight operator and
transportation company. Mr. Lam was also the president of Dragon
Junior Chamber, a local chamber affiliated with Junior Chamber
International Hong Kong in 2004 and was elected as the national
vice president of the Junior Chamber International Hong Kong in
2005. Mr. Lam is the independent non-executive directors of Sino-
Life Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
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Senior Management

Mr. WONG Siu Ki ( # JkBE) , aged 34, is the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong joined
the Group in August 2007. He is responsible for overall financial
planning, financial reporting, budgeting, investors’ relations and
implementing the Group’s business strategies. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Wong worked in an international accounting firm from
1997 to 2003. Subsequently, between 2004 to 2007, Mr. Wong was
appointed as the Chief Financial Officer cum Company Secretary
to a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of
Singapore. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy
with First class honours from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Wong is a fellow member with The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. LIU Yuntang (% 52 3%) , aged 41,
manager of the Company and is responsible for production

is the deputy general

management of the Group. Mr. Liu joined Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium Profiles Factory in 1993. Prior to joining the Group
in October 1993, Mr. Liu worked at Nanhai Guangdong Cable
Ltd. from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Liu was granted a

bachelor’s degree in engineering by the Guangdong Mechanics

Factory Co.,

Institute in 1991. He was certified as assistant engineer in 1993 by
the Nanhai City Science Technology Committee and certified as
engineer in 2001 by the Foshan City Human Resources Bureau.

Mr. WU Xikun (528 31) | aged 38,

manager for technology and deputy chief engineer of the

is the deputy general

Company. Mr. Wu heads the research and development department
and is responsible for the Group’s production technology systems,
development of new products branding. When Mr. Wu first
joined the Group in July 1994, he worked at Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium Profiles Factory where he was a technician of the
quality control section. Mr. Wu was granted a bachelor’s degree in
material science and engineering from the Guangdong University
of Technology in 1994. Mr. Wu was nominated for the Top 10
Outstanding Youth of Foshan City in 2006.
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Mr. DU Jinhong (kL& 8) , aged 54, is the deputy general
manager of the Company and chief financial officer of Xingfa
Aluminium and is responsible for all financial and accounting
matters of Xingfa Aluminium. Prior to joining the Group in 1999,
Mr. Du was the director (designate) of the finance department and
chief financial officer of Xingfa Group from 1999 to 2005. From
1992 to 1999, Mr. Du worked at Nanhai Hengxing Architectural
Ceramics Factory (1992 to 1993) and Nanzhuang Town Economy
Development Head Office (1993 to 1999). He was certified as
assistant accountant by the Nanhai City Science Technology
Committee in 1993. Mr. Du holds a diploma in economics
management granted by the Guangdong Administrative University
in 1997.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings
Limited (“Company”) present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collected referred to as the “Group”), for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of other members of the Group
are set out in note 15 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2009.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 61 of the
annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of RMBO0.033 (2008: RMB0.021) per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 2009, subject to the approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The pay-out ratio is about 20% based on net profit
in 2009. The conversion of RMB into Hong Kong dollars shall
be calculated on the average price of the medium prices of the
conversion of RMB into Hong Kong dollars as announced by the
People’s Bank of China one calendar week preceding the Annual
General Meeting. Subject to the approval by the shareholders, the
proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or about 18 June
2010 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 3 June 2010.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 1 June 2010 to Thursday, 3 June 2010 both dates
inclusive. During such period, no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend
and the attendance in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 31 May 2010.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five years is set out on page 171.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the balance sheet
date are set out in note 23 in notes to the consolidated financial

statements.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 in notes to the

consolidated financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid-in capital for the year ended 31
December 2009 are set out in note 27 in notes to the consolidated

financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme
(“Scheme”) on 29 February 2008. The Scheme became effective
on 31 March 2008. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives or

rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Participants under the Scheme include directors and employees
of the Group or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group
holds an equity interest; any suppliers, customers, advisers or
consultants of the Group or any Invested Entity; any persons or
entities that provide research development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity; any holders of
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and any other groups or classes of participants whom the
Board considers have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group must not exceed 41,800,000 Shares,
being 10% of Shares in issue on the date of listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) has been obtained, and which must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

No share option was granted by the Company since its adoption.
As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 41,800,000 Shares, which represents
10% of the issued Shares as at the date of listing of the Shares on
the Stock Exchange.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued Shares from time to time.
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The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be
such price as the board of Directors (“Board”) may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of grant of the option but the
subscription price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of the Board approving the grant of
an option, which must be a business day (“Offer Date”); (ii) the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period
commencing immediately after the business day on which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted in accordance with
the Scheme (“Commencement Date”) and expiring on such date
of the expiry of the option as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and which shall not exceed ten years from
the Commencement Date but subject to the provisions for early

termination thereof as set out in the Scheme.

Upon acceptance of the grant of an option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 31 March 2008.

Details of the Scheme are set out in the prospectus of the
Company date 17 March 2008.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2009.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in note 28 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2009, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies,
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands amounted to RMB688,106,000 (2008:
RMB669,155,000), of which RMB13,794,000 has been proposed
as final dividend for the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2009, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 22.6% (2008: 26.5%) of the
Group’s turnover where sales to the largest customer accounted
for 6.2% (2008: 7.7%) of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, purchases from the five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 46.5% (2008:
69.6%) of the Group’s total cost of purchase whereas purchases
from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 11.2%
(2008: 39.3%) of the Group’s total cost of purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five
largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2009.
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L AR AR AT 11.2% ( “FFEI/NF 39.3%)

#?

PEE_AFTIFET A= HIRFEER E
2 0 A M RN e B AT BB (L o T
o A A T E AT A % L B ) BE A B A A
A 1 TR % 15 BT R 8t M 2 A ) i
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DIRECTORS HE

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2009 and up to A #E “FEXIJAFE+ = H = —H IL4F BN Kk
the date of this report were: EAE AW ZEEMT

Executive Directors AT ES

Mr. LUO Su (Chairman) FEBRIEE ()

Mr. LUO Riming (Chief executive officer) BHMICH (77

Mr. LIAO Yuqing B B e

Mr. LAW Yung Koon Bt 9 e A

(appointed on 28 April 2009)
Mr. WANG Zhihua

(R = FZIENA /N HEERAL)
EEFELE

Independent non-executive Directors: Bor e AT E S -
Mr. CHEN Mo R SE R

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu a8 Z 54

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy MR G e 2k

R 45 40 RI S5 108(A) > FRBRSC4E - BB H WISEAE I
ARBE 8 e AR 45 1 6 e R AT B RS - T O A%
1% A A I B B T I 3 B 2 B R AR R
i 23R AT

In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Articles, each Mr. LUO
Su, Mr. LUO Riming, Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy will retire from
the office of Director by rotation and each of them, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

FERRCAE - FE R WISEAE S B R B R E A
B A A BRAS A E AT SEIRES ek o B R\
= — R E 2y = AR o B e B AR
AT RS kot IR AL — H R E
R =4F -

Each of Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO Riming, Mr. LIAO Yuqing and
Mr. WANG Zhihua, has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
1 March 2008. Mr. LAW Yung Koon has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 1 May 2009.

BB IFNTERECERATE EEH B —F
TNE=H—HBHAWAE HESAH -F—
TAEZH — H R AL W 4F

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a fixed term of two years commencing from 1
March 2008 and their respective term of appointment has been
renewed for a further two years commencing on 1 March 2010.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
Company considered all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 30 of the annual report.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had approximately 2,776
employees. The Group’s total staff costs, including wages and
basic salaries, directors’ remuneration, commission, bonus,
benefits in kind and retirement benefits scheme contribution was
amounted to approximately RMB69.40 million (2008: RMB56.52

million).

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and are reviewed regularly.
Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group. The primary goal of the remuneration
policy with regard to the remuneration packages of the Group’s
executive Directors is to enable the Group to retain and
motivate executive Directors by linking their compensation with

performance as measured against corporate objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group’s remuneration packages
include basic salaries and discretionary bonuses.

Report of the Directors
3 ol

W b SO 9 8 A A > AR A e B RO 4 R
B b 5 AN W) AT AT T A W RT S
A AR ] S T — A TR A A (3 B A BR A
M LA 1k 2 IR A 40 -

Ay ) C R I S T s o AR (T BT ))
5313 A 45 4 M Sk BUAT B S IO A R L
Ve 4 BERERR T - AR & W) 8 5 4 8 S JF AT
£ Bob Y NG o

O M AR P R

A AR 0 v A B R 15 AR A R
25830H ©

Ny &R

MNEEENFET A=+ —H  AEEHEALY
2,776 8 B - AL 2 B T AMBELN B AR
#69,400,00000 ( — & F N4 AR 56,520,000
Jo) B LEREAFH G- EEME - M
A B A BB RAE R B

A SR T 22 T < O T AR B4 IR B 2 R BLHIE >
Sl B 5 W3 AT A o AT A 4R T 2 g R 8 D
E > A B2 [ R AT fi) AR B4R O TE AL > 1R 2 A
S5 SRS A R RK 2 B o A B AR SR AT
FMEHGZMEER LR SEBBREIITEF
3 P B EL % i e 1) % R B R R 2 R BN
AR AR [ AT R R AT

A SR I < A S 2 T S I B A A < B 1
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The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) under rules and regulations of Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all its employees in Hong Kong. All
the employees of the Group in Hong Kong are required to join
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ salaries and are charged to consolidated
income statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years as at 31 December 2009. The Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC, in compliance with the applicable regulations of the
PRC, participated in a state managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the local government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of their payroll costs to the
retirement benefits schemes. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the

specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group to the
schemes and cost charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contribution payable to the schemes by the Group at

rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set
out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 8 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in the paragraph headed “Connected transactions”
in this report, no Director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2009.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A B 2 v
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long position

Report of the Directors
P

A 4 ) B S I T 2 B
R B e A B {5 HE o8 vh 2 B A

RoFEEF H =+ o ARARRER
WL BIEE 5T R I S B k) (T35 5 B Ik
1) 53520 B T B A7 2 B e M T Re 8% > SR8 L
AR BR 107 B i A Bl E SRS W
8 e < HI 0 Z8 B AR N B SIS 2 R A%
H AR T FEBATEN B AR 2 7wk AT 0T AR B
T (S I EEAEXVE) Z B
AH B B0 B A W R 2 RE AR BRI

e

Percentage
shareholding in
the same class of
securities as at
31 December

2009

[/ 2= I S

Company/Name of Numberand +Z-H=1+—H

associated corporations Name of directors Capacity class of securities ] 38 8 2 F¢ I 4

ov )R WG T R HHEA g/ it 77 WOH RO kb

Company LUO Su Beneficial owner 136,978,600 32.77%
AT i3 73 Hia A A ordinary Shares
136,978,600/
W3 B

Company LUO Riming Beneficial owner 96,495,300 23.09%
NN #&H HawEa A ordinary Shares
96,495,300/

Company LIAO Yuqing Beneficial owner 59,126,100 14.15%
b /| B B HiEEA AN ordinary Shares

59,126,100
W
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Percentage
shareholding in
the same class of
securities as at
31 December

2009
R ZEFLE
Company/Name of Number and +Z-H=+—H
associated corporations Name of directors Capacity class of securities [Fi) 2 58 7 i I
2 )/ B T 4 WHEH 50y w7 A R R A4k
Company LAW Yung Koon Beneficial owner 3,290,000 0.79%
AN 20 FH 55 HisHEa N ordinary Shares
3,290,000
o
Interest of spouse 1,710,000 0.41%
i {8 HE 4 ordinary Shares
1,710,000/
o
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE O Rz BE A

SHARES

R ZERRIE T T = B AR R
3 ] A 452 7 A ) 5 S AR5 4% B 2 T A R
AR 2 T 375 00 B N A ) M A7 A R T M A
EA > B A 3 45 A7 B AT Ao 5% 4 A 5 8y A 24 )
AT ] B Ja 2 ) 22 PR B0 fok 2 S m] AT AT L b o
UNEE:-E e R FIE

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2009 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of Shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING  # 3 it i T 35 05 2 B i
BUSINESS

BALNE® - FENE=Z] LA TSR
T EEES B2 FTNFE+ A=+ —H
bR BE > oM S AT o] B A 2 ) SR e 2 A
AT 363 2 S5 P WA AT AT A 4

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17
March 2008, none of the Directors hold any interests in any
competing business against the Company or any of its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2009.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND B 98 G I B ] & 0% 9 58 XV R ZE B 22
OTHER PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED WEZ Wz EEB R R H A A+
TO DISCLOSE THEIR INTERESTS

PURSUANT TO PART XV OF THE SFO

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ interests in i I 3C [ 2 S5 A A9 /A &) Ko HLAR B i B 2 JE 4y~ A
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its [ B £ S {0 ME 56 b 2 M 25 | — B JIr 43 &6 3 40 > i
associated corporations” above, as at 31 December 2009, no other ~ _FEFIJLFE+ A =+—H > MM HA A - A&
person had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying 2% & 2 B 05 S AH BE B 003 HP 4 A B 4 7k 8 T ZE R0
shares of the Company which are required to be recorded in the  #k it 4% 24 &) AR 45 35 F I W 15 0 9] 55 33640k 1M 47 &
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of 2 & FC A ©

the SFO.
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS I3 3 22 5
A. The following entities are connected parties of the A. LR A Al By AR\l 2 B 1 3l iR A
Company and had transactions with the Group during the CERBIVEF A = B E R ELA
year ended 31 December 2009: EEEIT Y -
Name of the entity Connection with the Company
o vl 7 H BLA v W 2 B AR
JEE SR L% AR T A PR A T Owned as to 46%, 33% and 21% by Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO Riming and
(Guangdong Xingfa Group Co., Mr. LIAO Yuqing respectively. Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO Riming and Mr.
Ltd.) (“Xingfa Group”) LIAO Yuqing are the controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
o BB A [ A BR A A Rules) and each of them is an executive Director.
([FEE4e ) 53 B A RS A~ AR H WS OB BB AR B 46% ~ 33% 5 21% o
MRE A - AR H SR A OB T B SE A B PR OBOR (B L BT BLAD) - T
WFES B BT ES -
il LTI B AR AT BR 4 ] Wholly owned by Xingfa Group since 30 April 2009.
(Foshan Xingfa Innovation BB EEE —FZIENA =T HERERA -

Co., Ltd) (838817 1)
(“Xingfa Innovation”)
i L) T B T AR ]

([ B A5 1)
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Name of the entity
kL SLAR 4y Wl Z B AR

Connection with the Company

il Ll 37 BB R BR S A
(“Leahin Coating”)
il 1) 7 BB AT R

(FAr B )

LTI B A 1 AT R R

Owned as to 51% by Xingfa Group.
(Foshan Leahin Coating Co., Ltd.) i BLE4E B HEHS1% -

Owned as to 46% by Mr. LUO Su, as to 33% by Mr. LUO Riming and

(Foshan Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door as to 21% by Mr. LIAO Yuqing. Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO Riming and Mr.

& Window Co., Ltd.)
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”)
o 1L T B R P A B
(FHBE )
5 o

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group has
entered into the following connected transaction that is
subject to reporting and announcement requirements.

On 30 December 2009, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, & 5L %% § 2545 B 28 A
(Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.) (“Guangdong
Xingfa”) (as the vendor) and Xingfa Group (as the
purchaser) entered into an asset transfer agreement
pursuant to which Guangdong Xingfa has agreed to
sell, and Xingfa Group has agreed to purchase, certain
foundation and structural construction of the smelting
production lines and the related gas pipeline structures at
a cash consideration of approximately RMB4.5 million.
Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 December 2009.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v

executive Director.
Ay R ZR AR ST AR H R Se A KB R B R WA 46% ~ 33% X 21% - H
BROCA B H W e BB R B A S IR I A A A AT

LIAO Yuqing are the controlling Shareholders and each of them is an

REEZFLTNF+ZH =+ HILFE
N > A S ARG F W B A 2 BLE > R T
TIIBE L S

R oEFENEF A=+ H > AN FRHE
A s D R RO SR 2 BR A ([
WELEE|) (fE/E ) HELEEEE (fF 5
BT ) WY OL K AR R o PR > B SR
O[] & B i B AR [ R O[] 2 AL
T A B AR 2 M3 e SRR MR AR L K
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C. During the year ended 31 December 2009, the following C. WRE _EZNALFET A= —HIE

continuing connected transactions were non-exempt SERE . N AR BE AE G Jy bR ER
continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.35 of T4A3SIRIE F 2 e i B 2C 5 > i
the Listing Rules and waivers from strict compliance with L 1] T 22 iy 5K B f i b 4 S A M B 0B ST
the announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval JBC SR HE 2 B o

requirement have been sought from the Stock Exchange.

1. The following is a brief description of the 1. LR B Re B ze 5 2 i A
continuing connected transactions:

i. Leasing of properties at Chancheng  Guangdong Xingfa entered into following lease agreements
by Guangdong Xingfa from Xingfa  with Xingfa Group and Xingfa Innovation respectively,
Group and Xingfa Innovation each dated as of 28 July 2007, in respect of certain
JEE BB 2 ) B A ] K LB QBT properties at our Chancheng Factory (“Chancheng Lease
FAA Ik 2 2 Agreements”), pursuant to which:

SERFEAELA A NH > BORELSE S pi B S EE AR [
SHL % A 7 A 4 [ R IR S 2 A T W SERT 5L T S AR B
k([ k] ) > JR

@) Guangdong Xingfa leased from Xingfa Group
12 industrial buildings, a dormitory, a research
building and various structures with a total gross
floor area of approximately 45,518.86 sq.m.
situated at No. 23 Renhe Road, Nanzhuang Town,
Chancheng District, Foshan City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC; and

() TR i S A A o R B oL T
[ i S BN B 2358 2 T TROK B - — WA
o BERTEE M R L MARESRY) MR
45,518.86°F- 75 K 5 J

(ii) Guangdong Xingfa leased from Xingfa Innovation
3 industrial buildings, 3 warehouses, an exhibition
hall, Levels 1 to 5 of an 8-storey office building
and various structures with a total gross floor
area of approximately 29,840.65 sq.m. and
various structures situated at No. 54 Renhe Road,
Nanzhuang Town, Chancheng District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC.

(i) B SR e SR AT A o R R o T
Ik It i A BRI B 54 5% 2 =i TR = A
Jo R - — WS S T 1 ESHE 2
8 S 90y - 48 A 568 T A 4929,840.65°F T K
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The term of the Chancheng Lease Agreements commenced
from 28 July 2007 and ended on 31 December 2009.
The aggregate rental payable by our Group to Xingfa
Group and Xingfa Innovation under the Chancheng Lease
Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2009 was
RMBS,731,000, which was determined with reference to
the actual area occupied by our Group during the year.
B E RS —FFEEEA ARG e R
TETRNFETTH =t HE o RN B
BWEZEZTZIE+T A = — H IR A5 FREAS B
B [ L B A 2 L AU 2y A\ R 18,731,0007C -
T 88 275 A T AR TR B R A T TR T E o

ii. Purchase of coating materials by  During the year ended 31 December 2009, Guangdong
Guangdong Xingfa from Leahin  Xingfa purchased from Leahin Coating paint materials for
Coating use in the surface finishing process.

[ SR B ) 7 LR R B E R A RN EE SR FINE T A = — B AR A B

e 1] 7. B % e i Y A 3 AT B B TR 2 W R S R

For the year ended 31 December 2009, Guangdong Xingfa
spent approximately RMBS8,124,000 on purchasing paint
materials from Leahin Coating.
WEZEZZNFET A=+ HILFE BB
A1 N R 8,124,000 7T 1) 7. Bl ¥ 454 5 W % D b e

iii. Sale of aluminium profiles by During the year ended 31 December 2009, Guangdong
Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa  Xingfa sold to Xingfa Curtain Wall certain construction
Curtain Wall materials specified by Xingfa Curtain Wall. The
B R L () B G A 5 L b construction materials purchased by Xingfa Curtain Wall

were further processed into window and curtain wall and
sold to its customers.

IBE EFNET A= HIREER AR
1) BB 3% 5 1 AR LR R AR 0 2 T A - B R
S BN 2 A B BN T P R AR e S

For the year ended 31 December 2009, Guangdong Xingfa
sold construction materials to Xingfa Curtain Wall for
approximately RMB33,140,000.
BEEZNFETHAZT—HILFERE . EREEEHE
T BB 2 A A N R 33,140,000 7T ©
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2. Set out below is the annual caps for the year ended 2. N ICH A B TR AR A B R A g L
31 December 2009 of each of the continuing EFENFT_A=+—HILFEEZ
connected transactions set out above: R

For the year ended

31 December 2009

BE ZFILE
TZAZr—HIEAEE

i. Leasing of properties at Chancheng by Guangdong Xingfa from RMBS,731,000
Xingfa Group and Xingfa Innovation A R %8,731,00070
i Ji R B 5% i) B AR ) e B 1 AL PR 627 Rk 2 ) 2

ii. Purchase of coating materials by Guangdong Xingfa from RMB35,000,000
Leahin Coating A R 35,000,00070
ii. R SR i Sy TR O L O R TR R

iii. Sale of aluminium profiles by Guangdong Xingfa to RMB70,000,000
Xingfa Curtain Wall A E%70,000,0007C
B RCROEL R ) LR N B A L AL

3. Views of the independent non-executive Directors: 3. T SL AT 2 B
The independent non-executive Directors have B FE AT E ST O E AR R
reviewed the above continuing connected AT Gy > Wi R w2538 5 )Y

transactions and confirmed that the transactions

have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business (1) A | — i K B HZER i
of the Company; PR HEAT 5

) on normal commercial terms or terms no 2) e — I 7 B SR AN R A A
less favourable to the Company than terms 75 7 1) A8 57 5 = B Ak R
available to or from independent third 152 FOEAT s K

parties; and

3) in accordance with the relevant agreement 3) RIEH B 5% 5555 5 2 AH B )
governing them on terms that are fair RIS P ¢
and reasonable and in the interests of the 17> HAF G A A A e 2 %%
shareholders of the Company as a whole. B ) 45 -
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D. The Directors confirm that the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 32 in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

KPMG, the auditors of the Company, have performed
certain agreed-upon procedures on the continuing
connected transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules and confirmed to the Board in writing that
the transactions:

(i) have been approved by the Board;

(i1) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

(iii)  have been entered into in accordance with the
terms and conditions under the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have not exceeded the annual caps as disclosed
above.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company
has complied fully with the code requirements under the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company’s corporate
governance report for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set
out in pages 48 to 58 of the annual report.

On 29 February 2008, our Company adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) (in
force prior to 1 January 2009) as its own code of conduct for
securities transactions (the “Old Code”). With effect from 1 April
2009, the Company has adopted a new set of codes for securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than those set out in the
Model Code (in force on 1 April 2009) as its own code of conduct
for securities transactions (the “New Code”). Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standards set out in the Old Code
for the period from 1 January 2009 to 31 March 2009 and the New
Code for the period from 1 April 2009 to 31 December 2009.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v

Annual Report 2009 4 #t

D.  EERERD - A B R I RE 2 M RE32 8T
e s 2 FOK I U5 58 oy R i LRI AR
VAAT E 28 T 2 TR 22 5 | 8T #F 2
A (BEWMAE) - EREMR > AR
A O ST ARBE b B A 14ATE 2 B EE B
o

A ST 0 BB IS T 4R 9
LI 14A 381 5 4B LA 5 7
SR o S L R
25

()  EERfFESEGAHE:
(i) AHREEA G 2 E HBORETT

(i) CERBEMEZERS 2 HE W #&E
2R AT 5 I

(v) Sl HERE b SRR 2 AR R

ERER

REEZFFAFEF A=+ —HILFER K
23 A AT ST bR R4 P2 A SR A
HRUSF R ([RSEEIR T Z5F RIBLE » A2 ]
REE_FFNET A= HILFEERZ A
SERR W R F R 48 B 58 H o

REFFNEZA A IE - ARFCRA BT
R B k107 b T 8847 N TR L 5
FRAESF R (TARHESP A ) (R = FF FE—H—H
AR50 A oy AR B 2 8 55 28 3 #p <P AU ([ <
HIL) - A ZFFIAFMA — H# AR AR
F5 38 5y T PR A0 — B < JI > AR oy AR B 2 W8 25 52
Gy RSy sF R CORESF I ) o 58 < JI 2 Gl A B
ey A O R F LRI A — H A0 Bl 2 R
AR M aREE AL ARAWE 2NE
HIERWERLE —FLINFE-H AR FFN
EZA =t B R T R
NFENA—HEZZFFTNAE+FH=+—HHH
2 NT T ST B BT a2 R AR e



Annual Report 2009 4

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of subsequent events occurring after the balance sheet
date are set out in note 33 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who shall
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to re-
appoint KPMG as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LUO Su

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2010

Report of the Directors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
(“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
as its own code of corporate governance. The directors of the
Company (“Directors”) consider that throughout the year ended
31 December 2009, the Company has complied with the code
provisions under the CG Code.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate
governance of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent
procedures are in place to protect and maximise the interests of
the shareholders.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2009.

A. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

On 29 February 2008, the Company adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (in
force prior to 1 January 2009) as its own code of conduct
for securities transactions (the “Old Code”). With effect
from 1 April 2009, the Company has adopted a new set of
codes for securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than those set out in the Model Code (in force on 1 April
2009) as its own code of conduct for securities transactions
(the “New Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in the Old Code for the
period from 1 January 2009 to 31 March 2009 and the New
Code for the period from 1 April 2009 to 31 December
20009.
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B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

()

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of
executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors. As at the date of this report, the board
of Directors (“Board”) consisted the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. LUO Su (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Riming (Chief executive officer)

Mr. LIAO Yuqing

Mr. LAW Yung Koon (appointed on 28 April 2009)

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Mo
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy

The executive Directors, with the assistance from
the senior management, form the core management
team of the Company. The executive Directors
have the overall responsibility for formulating the
business strategies and development plan of the
Group and the senior management are responsible
for supervising and executing the plans of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”).
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(ii) Board meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2009, there
were two full board meetings held, at which:

- the Directors approved the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2008 and reviewed the results
announcement, annual report and the
circular to the shareholders of the Company
in relation to the general mandate proposal
and re-election of the Directors retiring by
rotation; and

- the Directors approved the interim results
of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2009 and reviewed the results
announcement.

During the year ended 31 December 2009,
the Board also discussed and approved the
following matters by way of circulation of written
resolutions:

- the Directors approved the appointment of
Mr. LAW Yung Koon as executive Director
of the company;

- the Directors approved the signing of an
investment agreement with the Management
Committee of the South West Airport
Economic Development Zone for investing
in the South West Airport Economic
Development Zone in Shuangliu County,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province, the PRC;

- the Directors approved the signing of an
investment agreement with Management
Committee of the Jiangxi Yi Chun
Economic Development Zone for
investing in the Jiangxi Yi Chun Economic
Development Zone, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC by establishing a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Jiangxi Province, the PRC;

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL% 85 3% % it A B 2 v
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- the Directors approved the acquisition of
land in Jiangxi Province in relation to its
investment in the Jiangxi Yi Chun Economic
Development Zone, Jiangxi Province, the
PRC which constituted a discloseable
transaction of the Company;

- the Directors approved the signing of a
supplemental investment agreement with
the Management Committee of the Jiangxi
Yi Chun Economic Development Zone for
the granting of a government subsidy to
the Company in relation to its investment

project in Jiangxi Province, the PRC;

- the Directors approved the acquisition of
land in Sichuan Province in relation to
its investment in the South West Airport
Economic Development Zone in Shuangliu
County, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province,
the PRC which constituted a discloseable
transaction of the Company; and

- the Directors approved the signing of an
asset transfer agreement with Xingfa Group
for the sale and purchase of some fixtures
which constituted a discloseable and
connected transaction of the Company.
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Prior notices convening the Board meetings were WAHMNEEegR LM HEES
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters BECEGRAMRIAFSETESR-
to be discussed. At the meetings, the Directors B b o TH SR LN T 2 R R
were provided with the relevant documents to be W2 A B S o AN Rl 2 2 ml R
discussed and approved. The company secretary of AT EF GG RTIRAHE -

the Company is responsible for keeping minutes for
the Board meetings.
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(iii)  Attendance record (iii) Wl gk

DNAERGREE _FFILE
TZH =+t —HILFE 872 #E
gk sk

The following is the attendance record of the board
meetings held by the Board during the year ended
31 December 2009:

Attendance at

meeting
L RS
Executive Directors HIrEF
Mr. LUO Su (Chairman) RS () 2/2
Mr. LUO Riming (Chief executive officer) BHMICH (77E ) 2/2
Mr. LIAO Yugqing B B A 2/2
Mr. WANG Zhihua FAEHE S 172
Mr. LAW Yung Koon A SR (R ZFEZ LA
(appointed on 28 April 2009) WH =+ /\B#ERAT) 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors B FE B AT HF
Mr. CHEN Mo e SR S A= 2/2
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu fil 28 etk 172
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy RIS 2k 2/2

(iv)

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board
considers that all independent non-executive
Directors have appropriate and sufficient industry
or finance experience and qualifications to carry
out their duties so as to protect the interests
of shareholders of the Company. One of the
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. LAM
Ying Hung Andy, has over 21 years in the
accounting, banking and finance sectors and is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has received their annual written
confirmations from all independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive

Directors are being considered to be independent.
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(v) Relationship among members of the Board

Mr. LIAO Yuqing, an executive Director, is the son-
in-law of Mr. LUO Su, an executive Director and
the chairman of the Board. Save as aforesaid, there
is no other family relationship between any of the
Directors or chief executive officer. All of them are
free to exercise their independent judgment.

(vi)  Director’s training

To keep the Directors and senior management
of the Group abreast of the latest development
of Listing Rules, the Company has organised a
seminar on the amendments of the Listing Rules for
the Directors and senior management of the Group
given by legal advisers of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
are segregated. Mr. LUO Su is the chairman of the Board
who is chiefly responsible for managing the Board and
while Mr. LUO Riming is the chief executive officer of
the Company who takes charge of the supervision of
the execution of the policies determined by the Board.
The chairman also chairs the Board meetings and briefs
the Board members on the issues discussed at the Board
meetings.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a fixed term of two years commencing from
1 March 2008 and their respective term of appointment has
been renewed for a further two years commencing on 1
March 2010.

The independent non-executive Directors have attended the
Board meetings and provided independent judgment on the

issues discussed.
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E. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v

The Company established a remuneration committee
on 29 February 2008 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The remuneration
committee comprises Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (chairman), Mr.
CHEN Mo, Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy and Mr. LUO Su.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to
review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors
and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Board
appointed Mr. LAW Yung Koon as an additional Director.
The remuneration packages and the service agreement of
Mr. LAW Yung Koon had been considered and approved by
way of circulation of written resolutions by all members
of the Board. As such, no remuneration committee meeting
had been held during the year ended 31 December 2009. It
is the Company’s policy that the remuneration package of
each Director and senior management shall be determined
by reference to the duties, responsibilities, experience and
qualifications of each candidate.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee on
29 February 2008 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. The nomination committee
comprises Mr. LUO Su (chairman), Mr. HO Kwan Yiu,
Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the nominees for
appointment as Directors and senior management of the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the nomination
committee has considered and approved by way of
written resolutions signed by all members of nomination
committee (namely Mr. LUO Su, Mr. HO Kwan Yui, Mr.
CHEN Mo and Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy) the nomination
of Mr. LAW Yung Koon as an executive Director.

E.
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According to the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from the office and offer themselves for
re-election. The Directors to be retired by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last
appointment.

At a full Board meeting held on 31 March 2010, the
Directors have reviewed the performance of the Directors
who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company and approved to recommend the re-
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election of such Directors at the forthcoming annual AR R g bR EAT
general meeting of the Company.
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION G. B &
For the year ended 31 December 2009, KPMG, the PR ZELRIET A = —H IR
Group’s external auditor, provided annual audit services JBE - AR SR [ A1 0 A% S R o RS
and other service to the Company. A breakdown of the ST 1) A 2 ) B 44t AR B A IR A A IR
remuneration of the Group’s external auditor is as follows: 5 o A B2 [ 1 A% R 2 < D A An T
For the year ended
31 December 2009
BREZRZNLE
+=H=+—H
1k 4
(RMB’000)
(AR T oT)
Audit service % R B
Annual audit services AF A U 950
Other service HCAth Al 5 400
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H. AUDIT COMMITTEE
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The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference based upon the provisions and
recommended practices of the CG Code on 29 February
2008. The primary duties of the audit committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control systems of the Group. At present, members
of the audit committee comprise Mr. LAM Ying Hung
Andy (chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr. HO Kwan Yiu,
being the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the audit
committee has held two meetings, at which:

- the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the
Company the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008,
who is of the opinion that such statement complied
with the applicable accounting standards, the Stock
Exchange and legal requirements, and that adequate

disclosures have been made;

- the audit committee have reviewed the
reasonableness and fairness of the continuing
connected transactions of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2009; and
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- the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the
Company the Group’s unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30
June 20009.

The following is the attendance record of the committee
meetings held by the audit committee during the year
ended 31 December 2009:
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Attendance at

meeting

L EES

Mr. CHEN Mo I R 5 A 2/2
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu fi] & ek 172
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy MR S R 2/2

I. DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2009.

The external auditors of the Company acknowledge their
reporting responsibilities in the auditors’ report on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

With a view to enhancing the Group’s internal control
system, the Company has appointed an accounting firm
in the PRC during the year ended 31 December 2009 to
review the internal control regarding the completeness,
reasonableness and effectiveness of logistics management
of the Group. The Group is in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control measures as recommended
by such accounting firm in certain areas, such as
warehouse management.

The Board acknowledged that it is responsible for the
Company’s system of internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Board will conduct periodical review
on the progress of the improvement and enhancement with
an effort to enhance the internal control measures of the
Group.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LUO Su
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”),
set out on pages 61 to 170, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo 13 B 85 e ¢ 2 M A YL B e

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certitied Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

22 N 22
o W A R
for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LU BB ) BEZELENFEAf ZH = —HIFFERE
2009 2008
ZEFLE TRE)AE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
bt # ANREF NRIET T
Turnover BREH 4 1,871,480 2,136,368
Cost of sales RN (1,684,088) (1,961,110)
Gross profit EH 187,392 175,258
Other revenue oAb %5 5 6,644 9,781
Other net income/(loss) HAitig A7 (k548 15 % 5 7,319 (14,525)
Distribution costs a8 AR (29,945) (37,301)
Administrative expenses TR % (58,749) (61,914)
Profit from operations K88 112,661 71,299
Finance costs WA 5 LA 6(a) (30,965) (33,282)
Profit before taxation 3 56 if &z A1l 81,696 38,017
Income tax expenses T 1598 B S 7 (11,488) (8,704)
Profit for the year A B ¥ A 70,208 29,313
Basic and diluted earnings per 5 /B 5 A< T #  2 F]
share (RMB yuan) (AR¥) 11 0.168 0.075

The notes on pages 68 to 170 form part of these financial 568 % %5170 E Fr ik B 5 /5 A< BA WS i T a0 — &1
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of 43 o Z< /\ 7] HE 25 1% o8 ME A5 4F JE 35 B 2 JRE A+ Ik B 5E
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in & i [ff i£28(b) °

note 28(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AYX
s 4 T WYL g R
for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in Renminbi)

#E T EENES ZH = HIFEE (LU R T 77)
2009 2008
ZEFAE e A2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR WT L AR T IT
Profit for the year AF JE s 70,208 29,313
Other comprehensive income AR b 4 D WG £
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation of o e NRILFIE ([ R ])
financial statements of operations IS ETS 2 W R R 2
outside the People’s Republic of China i 58, 7 %
(the “PRC”) 90 (592)
Total comprehensive income for AR 2 i) R 4 B SRR A AR BE
the year attributable to equity ELE Rk
shareholders of the Company 70,298 28,721

The notes on pages 68 to 170 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
maBEEfAEE

at 31 December 2009

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LI B IR W ZFEENEFZH=A—H
2009 2008
“RELE TRE)AE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ks AR T AR ¥ET T
Non-current assets Ik Wi B B A )
Property, plant and equipment ESN AN 13 531,824 351,713
Lease prepayments AT & ‘ 14 295,753 153,661
Deferred tax assets 0% 4 Tl T 26(b) 16,075 390
843,652 505,764
Current assets i B & A
Inventories e 17 244,210 196,332
Derivative financial instruments At 2B 4 i T L 18 879 -
Trade and other receivables 22 5 B HoAth JE i 7K IE 19 581,916 466,720
Pledged deposits eI 20 89,552 36,646
Cash and cash equivalents e LB &% EY 21 279,836 214,905
1,196,393 914,603
Current liabilities i B £
Trade and other payables 22 Gy J Ho At JE A 3R IA 22 326,133 195,544
Loans and borrowings %?K&f%féf 23 697,443 559,329
Obligations under finance leases Ml &l & F A 24 22,321 -
Derivative financial instruments i 4w TR 18 83 1,137
Current tax payables JREASH BV A o T 26(a) 19,264 595
1,065,244 756,605
Net current assets i B & R 131,149 157,998
Total assets less current liabilities #2 & 72 ik it B £ i 974,801 663,762
Non-current liabilities I Ui By £ 4
Loans and borrowings %?ﬁ&%ﬁ 23 150,000 -
Obligations under finance leases g & EJAT 24 47,679 -
Deferred income R JE WA 25 60,908 -
258,587 -
Net assets A 716,214 663,762
Capital and reserves JB A B ik i
Share capital JeA 27 3,731 3,731
Reserves G 712,483 660,031
Total equity HE 25 44 %0 716,214 663,762

AR -REZH = AR g A

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31

March 2010. T8 -
LUO Su LUO Riming
g3 AW
Cbajrman Executive Director
F HITEF

The notes on pages 68 to 170 form part of these financial  5568E F &5 170 & I i Bt 5k /5 A% WA W5 L & i — 3
statements. gr e
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Balance Sheet

& E AR

at 31 December 2009

(Expressed in Renminbi)

WZEENFES ZH="1—H (LN B W515)
2009 2008
“RELE TERENE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ANR¥TFx NRIET T
Non-current assets I o B
Property, plant and equipment ERY NS ] 13 309 620
Investments in subsidiaries B A E 2 15 626,654 626,654
626,963 627,274
Current assets bt < g3
Trade and other receivable 22 Gy S oAb JE SRR A 19 63,370 31,943
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB4 EY 21 3,936 20,356
67,306 52,299
Current liabilities it By £
Trade and other payable 22 5y J oAb JE A 3 I 22 2,432 6,687
Net current assets i Bh & R A 64,874 45,612
Total assets less current liabilities #8 % 7 ik i B £1 & 691,837 672,886
Net assets jgE RN (i 691,837 672,886
Capital and reserves JBE A% B £k
Share capital Ji& A 27 3,731 3,731
Reserves T 28(a) 688,106 669,155
Total equity HE 75 A4 691,837 672,886

CR-F-FE=A =+ HREFGHOMETR

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31

March 2010. HE 1) 5% o
LUO Su LUO Riming
2§53 AW
Chairman Executive Director
FRE HIrEH

The notes on pages 68 to 170 form part of these financial ZE68E R 45170 8E 2 M 5E & AN AT 19— 304 »
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B E i 52 ) 3R

for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LU B WA 75) HE_FELENFE A= —HILFEE
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
A A R
PRC
Share Share Capital Other statutory ~ Exchanges Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserves earnings Total
Bk RbEE O EARE  RRRE vREERE O EARE  REEA it
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFL  AREFL  AREFZ  AREFL  ARETL  ARETL  ARETx  ARETZ
Note 27 Note 28(c)i) ~ Note 28(c)(ii) ~ Note 28(c)(i) ~ Note 28(c)(iii) ~ Note 28(c)(iv)
Mitor  Watse)s) ekl Wi WaEse)in  WeEse) )
Balance at | January 2008 RZFRNE-A-HZER 210,000 - - - 47,880 - 177448 45308
Changes in equity for 2008: “RFNELRERE):
Arising from Reorganisation (Note 27¢)i))) &'k B &R (iat27c)i)) (209,822) - - 209,822 - - - -
Share issued under the placing and RERZHEETHIL
global offering (Note 27(c)(i1)) Rl (k27 959 217,763 - - - - - 218722
Share issuance costs R TR A - (19,009) - - - - - (19,009)
Capitalisation issue (Note 27(c)iii)) BARCETT (a0 i) 2,59 (2,594) - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 [ 2 F U5 8 - - - - - (592) 29313 871
Appropriation to reserves R - - - - 5967 - (5.967) -
Balance at 31 December 2008 RZETNE
paiEs nldiba i 3731 196,160 - 209,822 53847 (592) 200,794 663,762
Balance at | January 2009 REZENE-R A& 371 196,160 - 209,822 53,847 (592) 200,794 663,762
Changes in equity for 2009: CRRNELERE:
Dividends approved in respect of HELEEERE
the previous year (Note 2(8)) W8 (#ii2sm) - - - - - - (20,900) (20,900)
Capital contribution Rk & - - 3,054 - - - - 3,054
Total comprehensive income for the year EERAHRGAS - - - - - 90 70,208 70,208
Appropriation to reserves TR - - - - 9,930 - (9.930) -
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZFTNE
TR 311 196,160 3,054 209,822 03,777 (502) 240,172 716,214

The notes on pages 68 to 170 form part of these financial

statements.

SEOSTH B 17T0H 2 Mk A A8 BAHS iR 32 1 — &R 43
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEBlenmER

for the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi)
#HEZEENFES ZH = HIEFEE (LA B W71 7)
2009 2008
SEEAE CEEAE
Notes RMB’000 RMB 000
Bt 7 AR T NRHTF T
Operating activities REBWEH

Cash generated from/(used in) WA, () B4

operations 21(b) 158,609 (20,348)
Income tax and land appreciation — H B Bff J& 28 & & A5 BT 45 81 2

tax paid by the subsidiary - b ¥ (E B

in the PRC (8,504) (10,585)
Net cash generated from/ BEWmBEE, ()

(used in) operating activities W& wH 150105 (30,933)
Investing activities BEEH
Interest received B A S 4,089 6,622
Proceeds from pledged deposits 2K A7 3 15 50 83,323 156,371
Payment for pledged deposits O 77 AT 3 (136,229) (160,595)
Acquisition of property, W) 3~ R B R

plant and equipment (213,671) (133,175)
Payment for purchase of W B A R (A AR

net assets 16 - (142,644)
Payment for lease prepayments TEATFE 42 (145,216)
Proceeds from disposal of assets w8 B 2 AR R A

classified as held for sale AT 15 2K T8 - 23,000
Proceeds from disposal of HEW - RS Kk

property, plant and equipment JIT 45 3} IH 87,197 -
Payment of business tax and RS AT AR 4 T A 2E B I

surcharges on disposal of B Jon 2%

lease prepayments - (877)
Repayment of advances to 1] I3 7y 2 A

related parties - 3,533
Net cash used in investing BEEH B & T8

activities (320,507) (247,765)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GeBlemER

for the year ended 31 December 2009

(LU BB ) HEZEENFAS A=A — HIEFRE
2009 2008
“RELE TRE)AE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 7 AR T NR¥TF T
Financing activities &S B
Interest paid CATFLE (31,911) (33,282)
Proceeds from loans and B T A B T A SKE
borrowings 1,142,542 897,625
Repayment of loans and BEAER LG
borrowings (854,428) (715,296)
Proceeds from issuance of shares A 4 BR %5 8 9547 I
for global offering ST A5 3K = 218,722
Payment of share issuing costs JB A BEAT LA FKH - (19,009)
Dividends paid A i S 28(b) (20,900) -
Repayments of advances from A 7y B R BGR
related parties = (1,447)
Net cash generated from financing il & % B) fir 15 31 & {F 48
activities 235303 §4£7_,311_3_ ~
Net increase in cash and B4 T B4 55 8 W M4 v A
cash equivalents 64,901 68,615
Cash and cash equivalents W—H—HBRE& R
at 1 January HEFED 214,905 146,411
Effect of foreign exchange rate T 8 5% B) Z 3% &
changes 30 (121)
Cash and cash equivalents RTZA=Z+—HWBR&ER
at 31 December BlE%ED 279,836 214,905

The notes on pages 68 to 170 form part of these financial

statements.

SR68 170 T Fir i Bk 3 5y A% B 55 4k R 1 — B0 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao 13 B 85 e 2 W R

1 Company background and basis of
presentation

(a)

(b)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v

Reporting entity

Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 13 September 2007 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
are principally engaged in manufacturing and sales
of aluminium profiles (the “Aluminium Profile
Business”).

Reorganisation

Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
of the Company and its subsidiaries now
comprising the Group completed on 29 February
2008 to rationalise the Group structure for the
public listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the operations
of Aluminium Profile Business with the relevant
assets and liabilities of Guangdong Xingfa Group
Co., Ltd (“Xingfa Group”), Guangdong Xingfa
Innovation Co., Ltd (“Xingfa Innovation”) and
Foshan Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd. (“Foshan
Xingfa”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “Predecessor Entities”), were transferred to
the subsidiaries now comprising the Group by 28
July 2007 and the Company became the holding
company of the subsidiaries now comprising the
Group from 29 February 2008. The shares of the
Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 31
March 2008. Details of the Reorganisation are set
out in the prospectus dated 17 March 2008 issued
by the Company.

5

Zl

(b)
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1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Company background and basis of
presentation (continued)

(0

Basis of presentation

Since all entities which took part in the
Reorganisation were under common control
of a group of ultimate equity shareholders
(the “Controlling Shareholders™), the Group is
regarded as a continuing entity resulting from
the Reorganisation under common control.
Accordingly, the Company has applied merger
accounting to account for the Reorganisation in
accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), under which
the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the basis that the Company was the
holding company of the Group as if the Aluminium
Profile Business had been operated by the Group
and the current group structure had been in
existence from 1 January 2008, rather than from 29
February 2008.

Accordingly, the consolidated results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2008 include the
results of the Company and its subsidiaries now
comprising the Group with effect from 1 January
2008 or since their respective dates of incorporation
or being acquired, whichever is a shorter period.

All material inter-group transactions and balances
have been eliminated on consolidation. In the
opinion of the directors, the consolidated financial
statements prepared on this basis present fairly the
results of operations and the state of affairs of the
Group as a whole.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual IFRSs
promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”), International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and related
Interpretations. These financial statements also
comply with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted and consistently applied by the
Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that derivative financial instruments are
stated at their fair value as explained in note 2(d).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(0

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 35.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(h)).

2
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses aluminium futures contracts and
forward foreign exchange contracts to mitigate its
market risk associated with aluminium price and
foreign currency fluctuations. In accordance with
its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes.

The Group does not adopt hedge accounting.
Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss under “other net

income/(loss)”.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses (Note 2(h)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see note 2(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

. Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of
the lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 20 years after the date
of completion.

. Plant and machinery 10 - 20 years

. Motor vehicles 3 - 10 years

. Office equipment 3 — 10 years
and others

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent payments for land use
rights to the PRC authorities. Land use rights are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 2(h)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the respective periods of the
rights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao 13 B 85 e 2 W R

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGFBUR ()

(g)  Leased assets (g B & B

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a i A B B s AR P — TH B 2 TH 2
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the VN a3 i R SIS L
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a R RE DA — a2 K
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed TH QA B2 PE R s S A A
period of time in return for a payment or a series of I TS AR A BR 22 PR R A I A
payments. Such a determination is made based on 1M A B2 PR & A iEAE 2
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement iERA

and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the i) KL AR EEZ

Group

Assets that are held by the Group under AL BB E A AT
leases which transfer to the Group B HE Z 48 RHR 4y TR B ] ¥
substantially all the risks and rewards of L% B A 4R B 2 54y
ownership are classified as being held under HAERBREHERGZE
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer JEE o JUT A HE 22 48 R 4y JE Bk
substantially all the risks and rewards of T T 7 A e B B A B2 [ 2
ownership to the Group are classified as MESBEAREME-

operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2(e). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note
2(h). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Leased assets (continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease term.

(h) Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

Trade and other receivables and other
financial assets that are stated at amortised
cost are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables (continued)

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

The impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

i)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included
within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or

may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- lease prepayment; and

- investments in subsidiaries

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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o 13 B 85 e % W wE

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGFBUR ()
(h) Impairment of assets (continued) (h) &R (4
(iii)  Interim financial reporting and (i) o TR

impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing R F G5 A R
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of AN FERE IR BT RLA S A LE
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required JEU 7 I e R 2 345
to prepare an interim financial report in [ o 1 B 5 i | A A R
compliance with TAS 34, Interim financial BUAE B2 N H 22 v 1 B s
reporting, in respect of the first six months Wt o R IR AL E
of the financial year. At the end of the PR 55 ) 5% B BUE AR R 2
interim period, the Group applies the ToR L T~ R % i Il A
same impairment testing, recognition, and (S MtaE2h)G) K (i) ) -

reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 2(h)(i) and (ii)).

() Inventories (i) by
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net 788 DA A B AT 5 BT (E 2 AR
realisable value. G o
Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost FRAS S INRE T 24 AR R F T i
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs FLHE T A i B AR ~ SR AR R
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing A7 % A5 H i HD B 1 5 i BUIR r
the inventories to their present location and Wz A A -
condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in Al s BUHE A B OH EBHRER b 2 Ak
the ordinary course of business less the estimated FEE B 92 Al w5 USRS B AT
costs of completion and the estimated costs TR 2 Al R A -

necessary to make the sale.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

)

(k)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 2(h)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

@

(m)

(n)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 2(p)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefit

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will

reverse in the future.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0) Income tax (continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on

either:
o the same taxable entity; or
o different taxable entities, which,

in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

i)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with Note
2(p)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group, under the guarantee, and
(ii) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
has accepted the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts and goods

return.
(ii) Services income

Revenue from services rendered is
recognised in profit or loss upon the

completion of transaction.
(iii)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q)

(r)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues

using the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in
the balance sheet initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as revenue
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are
initially recognised as deferred income and
subsequently recognised as other revenue
in profit or loss over the useful life of the
assets.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are

translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling

at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in

which they are incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

®

Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly
or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

(i1) the Group and the party are subject to

common control;

(iii)  the party is an associate of the Group or
a joint venture in which the Group is a
venturer;

(iv)  the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or, a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individual;
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

(u)

Related parties (continued)

(v) the party is a close family member of a
party referred to in (i) or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Changes in accounting policies

The TASB has issued one new IFRS, a number of
amendments to IFRSs and new Interpretations that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Of these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements:

IFRS 8, Operating segments

. IAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of Financial
Statements

. IAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs

. Improvements to IFRSs (2008)

o IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements — Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

. Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Improving disclosures about financial

instruments

. Improvements to IFRSs (2009)

T 5 R R W Rk

& al BOR 52 3

1 % Y 0 B o A — SR AT R B
5 00 o Y S LA e 25 T I R A 5 2 Y )
RIS BORT we B w5 ME AN BT Mo R
21—‘%@&2!-‘"*7 ENTRCER Gl N RV 5 92

AT A R A o AR T B B ) Y B A A
Zﬂﬁaﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ :

. k] 5 U 5 S o e )9 8 S A 7 T
. B e FHE SR 198 (R T LK

BERT) M5 ok 2 251

. B B A 23R (R ELAF
BAERT) fHE A

. S AT\ AR [ R S R B 2
o

. I 5% ot ) SR 27 R A i B S A
B ek — BUE R M A ] R 4
il B g ) 2 B

. 1] ¢ o B 585 7 % < T L
Wedls —UUE S T H 2 S5

. S TR B BRI O R 2
Bigi

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% % B A PR 2 W)

95



--.'----------------------------

96

Annual Report 2009 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%o 13 B 85 e 2 W wE

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The “Improvements to IFRSs (2008)” comprise a number
of minor and non-urgent amendments to a range of
IFRSs which the TASB has issued as an omnibus batch of
amendments. These amendments have no material impact
on the accounting policies already adopted by the Group.
In addition, the amendments to IFRS 7 do not contain any
additional disclosure requirements specifically applicable
to the Group’s financial statements. The impact of the
remainder of these developments is in the financial report

is as follows:

. IFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based
on the way that the Group’s chief operating
decision maker regards and manages the Group,
with the amounts reported for each reportable
segment being the measures reported to the
Group’s chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of assessing segment performance
and making decisions about operating matters.
This contrasts with the presentation of segment
information in prior years which was based on a
disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements
into segments based on geographical areas. The
adoption of IFRS 8 has resulted in the presentation
of segment information in a manner that is more
consistent with internal reporting provided to
the Group’s most senior executive management,
and has resulted in new reportable segments
being identified and presented (see note 12).
Corresponding amounts have also been provided
on a basis consistent with the revised segment
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The Group has early adopted an amendment in the
“Improvements to IFRSs (2009)” which amended
IFRS 8 such that measure of total assets for each
reportable segment is only required to be presented
if it is regularly provided to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker. Segment assets are not
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker regularly. As a result, reportable segment
assets have not been presented in these financial

statements.

As a result of adoption of IAS 1 (revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the year arising
from transactions with equity shareholders in their
capacity as such have been presented separately
from all other income and expenses in a revised
consolidated statement of changes in equity. All
other items of income and expense are presented
in the consolidated income statement, if they are
recognised as part of profit or loss for the year,
or otherwise in a new primary statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and corresponding amounts have been restated to
conform to the new presentation. This change in
presentation has no effect on reported profit or
loss, total income and expense or net assets for any
period presented.
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Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The amendments to IAS 27 have removed the
requirement that dividends out of pre-acquisition
profits should be recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment in the
investee, rather than as income. As a result, as
from 1 January 2009 all dividends receivable from
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, whether out of pre- or post-acquisition
profits, will be recognised in the Company’s profit
or loss and the carrying amount of the investment in
the investee will not be reduced unless that carrying
amount is assessed to be impaired as a result of the
investee declaring the dividend. In such cases, in
addition to recognising dividend income in profit or
loss, the Company would recognise an impairment
loss. In accordance with the transitional provisions
in the amendment, this new policy will be applied
prospectively to any dividends receivable in the
current or future periods and previous periods have
not been restated.

In respect of borrowing costs relating to qualifying
assets for which the commencement date for
capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009,
the Group capitalises borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost
of that asset. Previously the Group immediately
recognised all borrowing costs as an expense.
This change in accounting policy was due to the
adoption of IAS 23, Borrowing Costs (2007). In
accordance with the transitional provisions of
such standard, comparative figures have not been
restated. The change in accounting policy had no
material impact on earnings per share. The Group
has capitalised borrowing costs with respect to
property, plant and equipment under construction
with effect from 1 January 2009.
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Turnover 4

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sale of aluminium profiles.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers. Turnover excludes value added taxes or other
sales taxes and is after allowance for goods returned and
deduction of any trade discounts. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover
during the year is as follows:

o 11 B 85 e % W wE

% %

A SR B o R R B A A o

BREREMEFMEAMHEEHEE B
SERUN CLAE 3 (E B s A 8 B B> I 2 41
PR AR B 1A AT AT B 5 T 41 o A AR R 2
R D 2 25 FE 2R U A T

2009 2008
“RELE ZEREINF
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANR¥ T NRWHF T

Manufacture and sale of R N B SR AU
aluminium profiles 1,719,894 2,025,322

Manufacture and sale of aluminium R T B 6 SR A

panels, moulds and spare parts L T A 146,839 109,102
Provision of processing services P2 AL TR 4,747 1,944
1,871,480 2,136,368

The Group’s customer base is diversified and does not
include any individual customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities
are disclosed in note 12 to these financial statements.

AEEMBEF AL ol B AR S
i 7 45 1 S R 109% 2 AT AT 1 7l %
o

A B B B 2 PRI
P S R WA R 1248 -
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—

100 Annual Report 2009 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%o 13 B 85 e 2 W wE

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v

5  Other revenue and other net income/ 5 Hibdess RHEMWA (EE)
(loss) e
2009 2008
“ERELE ZRE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T N ¥ T T
Other revenue H At i 45
Interest income AR A 4,430 6,622
Government grants (1) R 46 B () 2,194 2,927
Rental income A 20 232
6,644 9,781
Other net income/(loss) Hg A (lEHE ) 35
Net realised and unrealised gains/ A T2 88 K&
(losses) on derivative financial KW (EHE)
instruments A
— aluminium future contracts — MBS 7,701 (19,342)
— forward foreign exchange contracts — S G 4 497 (580)
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale B AR B R A - 11,637
Loss on disposal of property, Y- WE K&
plant and equipment i A s 18 (240) -
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) SREEW 2, (s 1R) 151 (6,788)
Others oAty (790) 548
7,319 (14,525)
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Other revenue and other net income/ 5 Hftules RHAMBBA S (EE)
(loss) (continued) SR
(i) Government grants in form of cash subsidies were (i) 2 A A R 2 T L BOR E OEOR 3
received from several bureaux of the local government in B R o A T BUR MG (R BN R
the PRC. The entitlement of certain government grants, 1,882,0007G ) H AH B 1 1 194 155 0 A - 4%
amounted to RMB1,882,000 was unconditional and was HOEARLEEHREEZ -
under the discretion of the relevant bureaux. They were
granted for research projects of the Group.
The entitlement of the remaining government grant R TR Al B 4 2 A R L o AT B A
is conditional. It was granted for subsidising assets Wi AERE PRI AREHEE
acquisition of an investment project in Jiangxi Province JE R o RE TR AR I I H 2 g
of the PRC. The subsidy will be granted to the Group JEARAR 5y = WA T AR o o W A BN
in three phases in accordance with the progress of [ %62,469,0007C 2 H: 1 £ i 58 1S AT
development of the investment project. The first phase PG I H 2 L A RER B - BUW
of subsidy in the amount of RMB62,469,000 has been Bh & RE AR AE N A S 1A & E (M At
received after the completion of payment for land use 25) Z AT AE AR AR G o VR 2 58 T M
right of the investment project. This government grant is 55 Z I I 8 AR M A E AR L R T B
recorded as deferred income and is amortised over the B 5E AR By SEAGRA » ST 5H 7 HUA o )
useful life of the related asset (Note 25). The second and A B T O HEvERR I E -
the third phases of subsidy will become unconditional
upon the completion of the respective stages of aluminium
profiles production lines installation and will be received
after the approvals obtained from the relevant municipal
government in the PRC.
Profit before taxation 6 B B 1 ¥
(a) Finance costs (a) B R AR
2009 2008
—FF0E . = %S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE _ ARETT
Interest expenses on bank loans  $R47 & 3 A & B 3% 32,197 33,282
Less: interest expenses capitalised 1 : 7£ & LR N E AL 2
into construction in FIELBH 5 *
progress* (1,232) -
30,965 33,282
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a * B AR 5 4F F 54.496% £5.184%

rate of 4.496% to 5.184% (2008: Nil) per annum.

(ZFFNE ) FLERAL -

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S % 85 3% % Bt A PR 2 ¥
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6 Profit before taxation (continued) 6 B B Wil ¥ A (42)
(b)  Staff costs () BIEAK
2009 2008
—EFF TRF A
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANR¥TFx AR ¥ET T
Salaries, wages and other W~ LG R A A F
benefits 65,823 53,425
Contributions to defined I o R AL R AR FT 1 AL 3K
contribution retirement plan 3,573 3,092
69,396 56,517
(c) Other items: (¢) HipJEH :
2009 2008
ZEZIE CRE A
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T NRHF o
Depreciation (7) Sk 10)) 38,398 26,929
Amortisation of lease TE A FHL 4 B 8 ()
prepayments (7) 3,124 1,338
Research and development 38 BLAS (i)
costs (ii) 2,339 2,403
Increase in inventory provisions 17 & B4 1 - 1,900
Impairment losses on trade and 22 Gy B A JE Wi 3 TRV (B
other receivables (note 19) W8 (KfaE19) 841 -
Auditors’ remuneration % S T
— audit services — % R 1,167 998
— other services — A AR 422 1,050
Cost of inventories (i) B AR () 1,684,088 1,961,110
Operating lease charges: (i) KEME ()
— plants and machineries — i R M 2 1,272 3,607
— properties —W 9,998 11,046

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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6 Profit before taxation (continued) B B8 i 2 A (4
(¢) Other items: (continued) (c) HipyEH: (4)

) Cost of inventories for the year ended 31 (1) WE_EENETZA=Z1—
December 2009 includes RMB85,817,000 (2008: H ik 4F B A7 8 A 3 55 L 4T
RMB75,627,000) relating to depreciation, BRSPS A A B
amortisation expenses, operating lease charges TR A A BN R 85,817,000
and staff costs, which amount is also included in g FENE AR
the respective total amounts disclosed separately 75.627,0007C) > B i A £ 3
above or in Note 6(b) for each of these types of B 5 6.(b) 23 BH 98¢ 8 14 4% JE B S 48
expenses. B

(ii) Research and development costs include (ii) F 8 A B 1R B 2 8 LA
RMBI1,187,000 (2008: RMB1,368,000) relating AR #1,187,0000C ( & F )\
to staff costs of employees which amount is also 4 N R ¥1,368,00000) 0 B &F
included in total staff costs as disclosed in Note A B EE6(b) 4 8 2 B T A A
6(b). o

7  Income tax expenses 7 AR BLR
(a) Income tax expenses in the income statement (a) e 3 2 N B 19 BE B 38 -
represents:
2009 2008
SERBAE SEEAR
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T N R WEF T

Current tax R 391 856 16

Provision for PRC income tax Hh I T A B 48R A 27,173 8,862

Provision for PRC land R b 2 (B A

appreciation tax - 232
27,173 9,094
Deferred tax 9% A1t 5% JE
Origination and reversal of Fifh IR 22 % 7 AR T 93 [
temporary differences (15,685) (390)
________ (fts) (390)
11,488 8,704

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% % B A PR 2 W)
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7 Income tax expenses (continued)

(a)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v

Income tax expenses in the income statement

represents: (continued)

@

(i1)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
the BVI, respectively.

No provision has been made for Hong Kong
Profit Tax as the Group does not earn any
income subject to Hong Kong Profit Tax
during the year.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are liable to PRC

enterprise income tax as follows:

. Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd. (“Guangdong Xingfa”) is a
wholly foreign owned enterprise
and is entitled to tax concessions
whereby the profit for the first two
financial years beginning with the
first profit-making year is exempted
from income tax in the PRC and the
profit for each of the subsequent
three years is taxed at 50% of
the prevailing tax rate set by the
local authority. The prevailing tax
rate of Guangdong Xingfa for the
year ended 31 December 2009 is
25% (2008: 25%), but Guangdong
Xingfa can continue to enjoy the
existing preferential tax treatment
until the end of above mentioned
tax holidays. The income tax rate
applicable to Guangdong Xingfa
was 12.5% for 2009 (2008: 12.5%).
2008 and 2009 are the entity’s
third and fourth profit making year
respectively.

7

Fie 45 B P 32 (42)

(a) WAEERNFFHBEE: (4)

() HREB S L R
B (T3 )i B w55 1) KA
LR > A B2 [ B JH A5 B
ST M ORI 2 AT
] By 1384

(i) AR A i A AR SR I A e
YA AT ZEL SR04 7 s RSB 2
WA > S B8 A s A A5
TE i $3 45 o

(i) AR HE P B T 15 BRI K
Bl > A 42 18 2 Fp I B 4
ZE¥%E T 3 J7 AN b 4 2
ST 3R

. JE SRS SR 2E AT IR
Al (TRE R B |) /b
2HERE EHBL
TR %> i A R
AR EE MR R
BUAT B 27 s A
o T AR KA =
AR AR 2 35 R H b
BRI 2 B B R
50955 B o B R B 5E
NBE R INE
+=HZ=Z=+—H1
FEZHTBRER
25% ( BT )\
25% ) > M i AL gE
CIF § =Ry
WHEE HE LBl
AR B SE 4k B 1l o
CRFJUE IR
B2 M TR BB
12.5% (. FF )N\
E12.5%) c EE
AR B BRI S
A B 5% 08 7 2 5 = H
T 5 DU R R 4 B o
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7 Income tax expenses (continued)

(a)

Income tax expenses in the income statement

represents: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(continued)

. Foshan Xinggao Aluminium Co.,
Ltd. (“Xinggao Aluminium”), Xingfa
Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Chengdu”) and Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co.,
Ltd. (“Xingfa Jiangxi”) are limited
liability companies established
under the laws of the PRC and
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Guangdong Xingfa. They are liable
to the PRC enterprise income tax
at a rate of 25% for the year ended
31 December 2008 and 2009 or
since their date of incorporation if
applicable.

Pursuant to the New Tax Law in the
PRC, from 1 January 2008, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or
place of business in the PRC or which have
an establishment or place of business in
the PRC but whose relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment
or a place of business in the PRC, will
be subject to withholding tax at the rate
of 10% (unless reduced by tax treaty) on
various types of passive income such as
dividends derived from sources within the
PRC. As Guangdong Xingfa is held by a
Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary, a rate
of 5% is applicable to the calculation of this
withholding tax.

7
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Fie £ B P 32 (49)

(a) WAEENFFHBEE: (A7)

Gii)y (#)

. o 1) B R 2E AT PR
A O(TH a2l
BLEE SR 2E (D) A
FRZA AT B3 A
B 1) KRR R B R 4R
¥ (V) ARAFA
([HEEVCF]) J9 4R
B BEREL A
BR N ) > Slf7 A FEE R B
w2 REMIE A A
HANBEE —FFN
R EENET
A=+—HIL4EE
B H M sz B e
(3 ) #25% 2 Bl
LA B A SE T A
Bio

(v) MREPERBEBL B FE
JNAEE— A — B 78 P 55
N oK B B  5 BT > B
tifl A H B 5% A R ST R - 1
ST AR B A 2 it 15 B HC 7 o
Be N T sk A - BT A
W JE R A2 i H
BhZ Ak m A (R R i
Bl BT A 2 B $210% 8 %
( B FE 2 B e 1 2 3 e ) 480
TESEBL o s B R L gE hy —
ML 7 5 5 1 A S 22 B T 2
AR > BRI TR B
MZBRLS5% -
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7 Income tax expenses (continued)

(a)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v

Income tax expenses in the income statement

represents: (continued)

(iv)

V)

(continued)

According to the notice Caishui [2008]
No. 1 released by the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Taxation,
distributions of the pre-2008 retained profits
of a foreign-invested enterprise to a foreign
investor in 2008 or after are exempt from
corporate income tax. As at 31 December
2009, the remaining undistributed pre-
2008 profits of Guangdong Xingfa, which
amounted to RMB105,153,000, are not
subject to the 5% withholding tax in future
distributions.

Pursuant to “Fo Fu Ban [2003] No. 46~
and “Fo Di Shui Fa [2003] No. 68” issued
by the relevant government authorities
in Foshan, the land appreciation tax rate
applicable to the Group is 1% on the sales
proceed on disposal of land use right.
Gain on disposal of land use right, net of
land appreciation tax and surcharges, is
subject to the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC as mentioned above.

7
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(a)

W a2 9 B 13 BE PR A ¢ (A7)

(iv)

)

(#)

R 52 B B e I R o 5 R
M 2 BA R (2008155 1555 %8 1 5
AP HOE 2 —F R \F
o2 AR AN R TR
FEEFT 2 R R 3
AT ER S AN A T AR B
RoEENFT A=+ —
Ho BORBELEEER N 2 AR
TERFZ A AN R
105,153,000 7T 9 7E 4 495 %
Z AR o

R A 1Ly T AH R R A B
REA 2 T4 )R 3200314655 |
e [k HbBE % 1200316855 ] >
R AL 2 b (A
2y 0B b RE 2 B B T
B3KIE 2 1% 18+ b fifi /]
HE 2 W 28 40k - 06 (B %
Bt in 8 4% > ZFCSF kb )
A B T 45 R F) B KL 451
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7  Income tax expenses (continued) 7 PR BLE Z ()
(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) F52 30 B R T 2 0 49 B0 B S B
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: il i ) R
2009 2008
“RELE TRE)AE
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANR¥Tx N R WF T
Profit before income tax B BT A5 A4 i i ) 81,696 38,017
Notional tax on profit before 2 A B D 125 HE IR 8
taxation, calculated at the rates B R EHHE Z BRBLRT
applicable to the jurisdiction T 2 24 F B IH
concerned 22,220 14,630
Tax effect of non-deductible ANHT 0B BH S 2 B R 2
expenses 1,718 2,997
Effect of tax concession BB EEZ (12,450) (9,253)
Tax loss not recognised T FR B T s 18 - 156
Tax effect on land appreciation b 38 (B B S
tax - (58)
Provision for land appreciation - 1 (B B A
tax - 232
Income tax expenses B AT B 3 11,488 8,704

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% % B A PR 2 W)
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8 Directors’ remuneration 8 W&
Details of directors’ remuneration of the Group are as AEMEREMEFEHEWT
follows:
2009
ZEEME
Salary,
allowance Contribution

and benefits

to retirement

Fees inkind  benefit plan Bonus Total
AR 3B e d A
WaE  REWAE At 1 5% TB4L At
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBETE ARFETEZ ARKETLZ ARETLZ ARKETXL
Executive directors WTES
Mr. LUO Su IR 780 121 = = 901
Mr. LUO Riming HEHWEE 680 125 = 812
Mr. LIAO Yuging BBk 580 125 = 712
Mr. LAW Yung Koon 2 ek
(appointed on 28 April (R ZFFILE
2009) WA= TN HERT) 338 = = 345
Mr. WANG Zhihua EHERE 416 87 = 508
Independent non-executive % 3. 3¢ 47 ¥ 3
directors
Mr. CHEN Mo BRI 120 = = = 120
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu fil 7 38 564 120 = = = 120
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy ~ #k336 524 150 = = = 150
Total Ei 3,184 458 26 = 3,668

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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8  Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8 HHMWE )
2008
ZEENE
Salary,

allowance  Contribution

and benefits  to retirement

Fees inkind  benefit plan Bonus Total
Bao o B
e REWM&E R fEAL HEr

RMB000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE  AREFr ARFTE AREFT ARKTIL

Executive directors WiT#E S
Mr. LUO Su Bk 650 119 - - 769
Mr. LUO Riming AW 567 122 8 - 697
Mr. LIAO Yuging BB e 483 122 8 - 613
Mr. WANG Zhihua EH#ERE 357 75 5 - 437
Independent non-executive ~ BV JEHITHESE
directors
Mr. CHEN Mo it 100 - - - 100
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu fil B 35k 100 - - - 100
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy ~ #k336 5%/ 125 - - - 125
Total Azt 2,382 438 21 - 2,841
An analysis of directors’ remuneration by the number of e 38 N B0 7 T o ) 1 2 S M 9
directors and remuneration range is as follows: Ik
2009 2008
“RELE ZEREINAF
Number of Number of
directors directors
HEHAH EHNH
Nil to HKD 1,000,000 Z U5 56 %1,000,000%5 7T 8 7

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% % B A PR 2 W)
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CEA:2:9NE 4.

T4 R RN e U A 2 T R S
ASAF JEE 1A M <2 BT RER B R (- E AR
M) o Hfg—2 (ZFFNFE: —4) i
oG T A L G < AR AN T

9 Senior management remuneration 9

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
four are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
Note 8 during the year (2008: four). The aggregate of the

emoluments in respect of the remaining one individual

(2008: one) are as follows:

2009 2008
ZEEBMLE TR I)F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥F ANREFT
Basic salaries, allowances and FEAH B A X
other benefits HAth 47 Al 664 729
Contribution to retirement benefit plan B RAR R FT 3 AL 3K 11 12
675 741
2009 2008
ZEFRLE TEREI)F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A% N #
Nil to HKD 1,000,000 ZE 9 7T £21,000,0005 76 1 1

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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10 Profit attributable to equity shareholders 10 72 w] RE £ J 3¢ JE 46 ¥ Al
of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders AR TIHE A PR A £ G T P A 35 S FEA
of the Company includes a loss of RMB5,962,000 (2008: [ #5,962,00070 ( T TR - g AR
loss of RMB18,865,000) which has been dealt with in the #18,865,0007C) - R A A ] 2 BEHS R
financial statements of the Company. o B o

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s gt e B BRAS % W) AR N R 2 IR AR

profit for the year:

2009 2008
SEFAE CREAE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARW T N BRI T T

Amount of consolidated loss attributable A8 2\ 7] B85 ¥ 5% H jiE BE

to equity shareholders dealt with in HE o ORI AL 45 &

the Company’s financial statements i 48 4 (5,962) (18,865)
Final dividends from subsidiaries b A U R A 2

attributable to the profits of B IS 28 A R W S,

the previous financial year, A A T Ak o B R A

approved and paid during the year 45,786 50,000
Company’s profit for the year AN T Z A i

(Note 28(a)) (Mtit28(a)) 39,824 31,135

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% % B A PR 2 W)
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11 Earnings per share 11 FRERN
The calculation of basic earnings per share during the BEZEZNAET A=+ —HILFES
year ended 31 December 2009 was based on the profit B A 8 ) T AR IR A 2> EHE £ BRI A Ui
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company FIA R #70,208,0000C ( ZFFNF - AR
of RMB70,208,000 (2008: RMB29,313,000) and the 129,313,0007C) M E ~FFILEF H
weighted average number of shares in issue during the = B T AT R Z IREST 38 8
year ended 31 December 2009 of 418,000,000 (2008: 418,000,000/ ( —F % /L4 391,789,000
391,789,000). For the year ended 31 December 2008, the B)stHE -2 _FFNEL A =+ —
weighted average number of the ordinary shares issued Hok AR sHA AR E A O ZFF\FE
pursuant to Reorganisation which was completed on 28 ZHAZANHSE R TS AT 2
February 2008 is calculated as if the shares had been REF B B0R  REZE R YR B2 =R F
outstanding throughout the year ended 31 December 2008. JFEF T H = — BB RO T
TE4b o
2009 2008
“EFLE — S
’000 shares ’000 shares
T T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January A—H—HzZ ¥
3 i 418,000 -
Share issued upon Reorganisation AR BEAT R - 311,410
Effect of shares issued W TR AR
on 31 March 2008 =H=+—H
BATI AR 2 B - 80,379
Weighted average number of A=+t —HZ
ordinary shares at 31 December 8 Jn R T 1 418,000 391,789
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue BE_ZEEZNFR_FZFNET A
for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, and = B R AR R Sl S A A
therefore, the diluted earnings per share are the same as the I 5 e 480 1 s ) B e BE A 5 A AR ] o

basic earnings per share.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by product lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which the information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments.

. Industrial aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells plain aluminium profiles,

mainly for industrial usage.

. Construction aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells construction aluminium
profiles, including anodic oxidation aluminium
profiles, electrophoresis coating aluminium
profiles, powder coating aluminium profiles and
PVDF coating aluminium profiles. Construction
aluminium profiles are widely used in architecture
decoration.

All other segments include the provision of processing
services and manufacture and sale of aluminium panels,

moulds and spare parts.
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:
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Segment reporting (continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments. However, assistance
provided by one segment to another, including
sharing of assets and technical know-how, is not

measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is gross profit. The Group’s senior executive
management is provided with segment information
concerning segment revenue and profit. Segment
assets and liabilities are not reported to the Group’s
senior executive management regularly.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 is
set out below:

Industrial
aluminium profiles

TEEMH

2009 2008
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Construction

aluminium profiles All other segments Total
BB i b4 #it
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

CERAE CREAE ZERAE CFEAE ZRRAE CEDE ZRBE CETAE

RMB000

RMB 000

RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000

ARBTR ARWTT ARBTA ARKTT ARNTE ARWTT ARWTE ARKETZ

Reportable segment revenue ¥t 4+ b M

Revenue from external FHAMEF 2l
customers 366,115 654,593 1,353,779 1,370,729 151,586 111,046 1871480 2,136,368
Reportable segment profit W # 4t i Al
Gross profit A 62,202 87,842 98,533 78,163 26,657 9,253 187,392 175,258
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Segment reporting (continued) 12 S#2%H )
(b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment profit (b) W 5 N 2 R
2009 2008
—EFF TRE L
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANREF N R ¥F L
Reportable segment profit KERERSIREFZ
derived from the Group’s A R 45 43 0 v )
external customers 187,392 175,258
Other revenue HoAbli 23 6,644 9,781
Other net income/(loss) HAtbhue A7 (l518) ¥ %8 7,319 (14,525)
Distribution costs o3 88 A (29,945) (37,301)
Administrative expenses AT BB (58,749) (61,914)
Finance costs BB A (30,965) (33,282)
Consolidated profit before W B T £ A i )
taxation 81,696 38,017
(c) Geographic information (c) b [ R

SIf 4 52 271 A A (6] g [ T 35 1 4y 2
e W ES TSN B
EERTE AR EYE  BF &
52 B> SRR 2 #190% 2 5 2648
Yisk B BT o

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as
well as analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of
segment assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment by geographical market has not been
presented as over 90% of the turnover are generated
from the PRC market.
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13 Property, plant and equipment 13 W3-~ Wb Bkt
(a) The Group (a) A4
Office
Plant and Motor  equipment Construction
Buildings  machinery Vehicles  and others  in progress Total
W R A
S VT E ik R TERITR A5t

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTIE ARKTIE ARBTZ ARBTL ARBTIE ARKTZ

Cost: A :
At 1 January 2008 i YN

—H—H - 252,623 4,284 5,863 3,200 265,970
Additions wE 49,250 49,098 3,581 7,309 130,412 239,650
Transfer from construction  #45 { /£ 8 T#

in progress 188 3,498 - - (3,686) -

Exchange difference i 562 4 - - - (16) - (16)
At 31 December 2008 Qe JAN:E

+-A=1+—H 49,438 305,219 7,865 13,156 129,926 505,604
At 1 January 2009 RZZENAF

—H—H 49,438 305,219 7,865 13,156 129,926 505,604
Additions WE 1,026 93,621 3,425 6,178 206,197 310,447
Transfer from construction  H44 [ 7£ & T#2

in progress 81,633 105,330 - 882 (187,845) -

Disposals & - (106,703) (199) (257) - (107,159)
Exchange difference i 562 4 - - - (1) - (M
At 31 December 2009 REZEFNE

+-A=1+—H 132,097 397,467 11,091 19,958 148,278 708,891
Accumulated depreciation: 2 5t 7 % :
At 1 January 2008 i YN

—H—H - (123,888) (1,864) (1,211) - (126,963)
Charge for the year ARARJE 3 (1,655) (23,531) (681) (1,062) - (26,929)
Exchange difference I 58, 2 & - - - 1 - 1
At 31 December 2008 WEENE

+ZH=1+—H (1,655) (147,419) (2,545) (2,272) - (153,891)
At 1 January 2009 RZEFNE

—H—H (1,655) (147,419 (2,545) (2.272) - (153,891)
Charge for the year AR (4,400) (30,919) (1,284) (1,786) - (38,398)
Disposals hiTkis - 14,992 179 51 - 15,222
At 31 December 2009 REEENE

+-A=+—H (6,064) (163,346) (3,650) (4,007) - (177,067)
Net book value: e T ¥ 4 <
At 31 December 2009 REEZZNAE

+ZAZ+—H 126,033 234,121 7,441 15,951 148,278 531,824
At 31 December 2008 HZEENE

+-A=+—H 47,783 157,800 5,320 10,884 129,926 351,713

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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13  Property, plant and equipment (continued) 13 3¥E-WE Rkt a)

(b) The Company (b) PN |
Office equipment and others
2 25 Al B otk
2009 2008
SEELE CFEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥EF N RIET T
Cost: BAR
At 1 January w—H—H 775 -
Additions INE - 791
Disposals HE (258) -
Exchange difference TE 58, 26 86 (1) (16)
At 31 December Bt H=+—H 56 775
Accumulated amortisation: BE e
At 1 January w—H—H (155) -
Charge for the year AR ST H (103) (156)
Disposals o 51 -
Exchange difference i 58, 7 % -
At 31 December R+=A=+—-8 @07 (155
Net book value: W ThI 1A
At 31 December wr=ZA=+—H 309 620

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% % B A PR 2 W)
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

All properties owned by the Group are located
in the PRC. Buildings represented medium-term
leasehold properties.

Up to the date of this report, the Group is in
process of applying for the title certificate of one of
its properties with carrying value of approximately
RMB84,373,000 as at 31 December 2009 (2008:
RMB4,077,000).

Included in additions for the year ended 31
December 2008 are the purchase of property,
plant and equipment amounted to RMB90,711,000
through the acquisition of 100% equity interests in
Xinggao Aluminium (Note 16).

Certain plants with carrying value of
RMB21,774,000 was pledged as securities of bank
loans of the Group as at 31 December 2009. (Note
23(b))

The Group had entered into a finance lease contract
for certain production equipment expiring in three
years on 25 December 2009. At the end of the
respective lease term, the Group has the option to
purchase the equipment at a price deemed to be a
bargain purchase option. The lease contract did not

include contingent rental.

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of
machinery held under finance leases of the Group
was RMB87,069,000 (2008: Nil).

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

A B B R R A R SE R AR
B o 5% S AT T A

BMEAMRAE B> ALEIEARE L H
H—TH R ZERENFET A =4
H 2 B m (4 7 A\ R 84,373,000
JC ( FE A AR 4,077,000
TG) 2 ) SR R

WE_ZFZ/NE+_H=+—H1
A U E O O A0 i L v g 2
2 100% % R T B B ) 26~ W Rk
#5 N R 90,711,0007C (#7L16) -

WoEEBNEF A= —H B
i B N R #21,774,0000C 2 %7 T
5 B R A 2 AR 4 T ERAT B3k 2
Wk (B at23b) ) »

ASEIN “FEEL A R
LR = 4 0 1 2 25 26 7
T S LB A 40 © 1 L
I » S B R L
A 2 (0 O L L
FHI T QIER AT

REEEH AL EREMRE TR
FzlazEmFMEas AR
87,069,0007C ( ~FF /4« 4HE) -
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14 Lease prepayments 14  TFEAHH &
The Group
A 42 1
2009 2008
SEERE CERAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fx AR BT
Cost: %
At 1 January w—H—H 154,999 -
Additions wE 145,216 154,999
At 31 December wt=H=+—H 300,215 154,999
Accumulated amortisation: Bl gy
At 1 January w—H—H (1,338) -
Charge for the year ARAEJE 3,124) (1,338)
At 31 December wt=H=+—H (4,462) (1,338)
Carrying amount: iR T AL
At 31 December Bt =H=+—H 295,753 153,661
(i) Interests in leasehold land represent prepayments (i) T 1 HbRE 45 T8 TEUAT o I B 2

M I RE 2 - A SR 2 A 1
B > e B AT A A L E i

of land use rights premium to the PRC authorities.
The Group’s leasehold land is located in the PRC,

on which the Group’s manufacturing plants were IZR
built.
(ii))  Included in additions for the year ended 31 Gy WE_FZ/FT_H=1T—HI

AT TN A 97 200 5 L g 8 S
Z100% HEEHE T AE A FEAT - b A AR
A B N R 154,999,0000C ( M 7
16) TR _FFENE+_H="4—
The remaining period of this land use right was 47 H o 5% - R 8 T 4R 1A £447
years as at 31 December 2009. o

December 2008 is the additional prepayment
of land use right premium amounted to
RMB154,999,000 through the acquisition of 100%
equity interests in Xinggao Aluminium (Note 16).

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% % B A PR 2 W)
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14 Lease prepayments (continued) 14  FAMNH % )
(iii)  Included in additions for the year ended 31 (i) WME_ZFEFNFET_A=1+—HI:
December 2009 is the prepayment of land use AF B 22U AL 4 AR o YL T
right premium to municipal government of HE AT KB R T B
RMB83,780,000 and RMB61,436,000 in Yichun JRF BEAS 2 b R R R
City, Jiangxi Province and Chengdu City, Sichuan #83,780,0007C M A\ R #561,436,000
Province of the PRC respectively. The remaining JC o T IE i RE 2 R R AR Y
period of the land use rights were both 50 years. 5504 o
(iv) A land use right with carrying value of RMB (iv) WMo EENREFA=Z+T—HOIE
150,870,000 was pledged as securities of bank T {E 7% N R 150,870,00070 2 - b
loans of the Group as at 31 December 2009 (Note 6T RE 0 G 40 A A A T R AT B 3K
23(b)). ZAER (B iE23b) ) -
15 Investments in subsidiaries 15 REBARZHRE
The Company
y: /N
2009 2008
“ERELE ZRE A
RMB’000 RMB 000

ARW T ANRHT T

Unlisted Shares, at cost JE b e Fe A 626,654 626,654

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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T B I 2 ] Z BE & (a)
e R = ER R VN P2

15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 15

Details of subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2009 are set out below: R Jo 2 R FE G S A
Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Attributable
Name of company establishment capital equity interest Principal activities
G3LY D CHTR
TR JR 3L 3 B R H ) BREK A i 2 FREH
Direct  Indirect
Hik Il ¥
% %
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited BVI USD1,000 100% - Investment holding
(“Xingfa BVI”) 2 October 2007
S JE B 1,000 7 BB
“EFEHETACH
Xingfa Aluminium (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD1,000 - 100%  Sales of aluminium
Limited (“Xingfa Hong Kong”) 14 April 2008 profiles
BRI (R ARAT ik 1,000 7 8 SRR
(MEgEFE]) “FF)VFENA+MA
Guangdong Xingfa PRC RMB360,040,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
J6E SR L SR AT R A 1 1) ) 26 May 2006 sales of aluminium
profiles
T SR L 5 SE A RN R ) i) R ARH HEE R R R
ZEENE 360,040,0007C
THZ+AH
Xingfa Chengdu PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
B3 () A IRA Rl @) 7 July 2009 sales of aluminium
profiles
BLEESRSE () AR A @) A N He 7 K S B
“EENFEALH 100,000,0007C
Xingfa Jiangxi PRC RMBS50,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
JBE AL $ % (V7)) 14 August 2009 sales of aluminium
B R wl i) i) profiles
B SR g 5 2 (L) R N e T8 SR R A
R R ) i) “EELEAA A 50,000,0007C
1) The English translation of the Company names is for ) INGIPA ol SR AT R TN
reference only. The official names of these companies are A2 IEX 2 0G5 h 4 o
in Chinese.
(ii) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise. (ii) FA N Tk et X
(iii) The subsidiaries are limited liability companies. (iii) MBS AR e
(iv) Liquidation and deregistration of Xinggao Aluminium, (iv) A A [ 2 4 ) B 4 N v G R

a subsidiary of the Group, was completed on 19 August

2009.

HFEMR = FFIAE A A IUH SER
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16

Purchase of assets and assuming of
liabilities

On 26 July 2008, the Group acquired 100% of equity
interests in Xinggao Aluminium for a cash consideration of
RMB142,698,000.

Prior to the acquisition, the principal activities of Xinggao
Aluminium were leasing the land use rights, buildings
and machinery to the Group. The underlying set of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed was not integrated
in forming a business to generate external revenues to the
Group as a whole. As such, the directors are of the opinion
that the acquisition of Xinggao Aluminium is considered
as a purchase of assets and assuming of liabilities which
does not constitute a business combination for accounting
purposes.

The directors considered that the total purchase
consideration paid represented the fair value of assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. The acquisition had
the following effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities on
acquisition date:

16

i B R I AUIR

A TBENFELH N H A E R
B 4 2E 2 100% B0 A NE A AR
142,698,0007T °

W T B S 2 B 1) A A
Hh R T BEE T R M S o T 2
I AL B BT RIS 2 BN T &AL
AEL IR 7 A B T AR AP AR IR i o BE S
PIUE > B0 A > AUk & Wit B s 4
SEROL I A CETS & 2 I B
RYER -

HER T B > O A B AR R A BT i
B RE SRS AR AT o A I H
W WO AR W 2 G E KA EE R
7

RMB’000

ARWT T

Property, plant and equipment (Note 13 (iii)) W - W E IR (B A 130D ) 90,711
Lease prepayments (Note 14 (ii)) TEATFR 4 (M FE14(0) ) 154,999
Other receivables L A, R o T 11,941
Cash and cash equivalents B4 B B4 S 54
Other payables A 8 A5 3T (115,007)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities ATl B R A 142,698
Consideration paid, satisfied in cash T AR > DL B4 S AT 142,698
Cash acquired 5 i 3 (54)
Net cash outflow BTN RRELE 142,644

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v
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17 Inventories 17 %8
(a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet (a) R EEABRENZFEAE:
comprise:
The Group
NG|

2009 2008

“ERELE e AN

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR TIT ANRWT T

Raw materials JEE R 132,515 117,992
Work in progress TEH 30,750 14,295
Finished goods B 80,945 64,045
244,210 196,332
(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) R AL RFIABZZ FEEH
recognised as an expense and included in profit AHWMT

or loss is as follows:

The Group
A 4
2009 2008
SEEE CETAE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARW T N BRWET T

Carrying amount of OB EREH

inventories sold 1,483,387 1,748,735
Write-down of inventories s AE ] - 1,900

1,483,387 1,750,635
Certain inventories with an aggregated carrying W ZEEZANF+_H=+—H:
value of RMB146,900,000 were pledged as & T 28 E S AN R #5146,900,0000T
securities for bank loans of the Group as at 31 24 T B0 A S R AT A
December 2008 (2009: Nil) (Note 23(b)). AR (BRI ) (7T
23(b)) °

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% ¥ Bt A PR 2 W)
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18 Derivative financial instruments 18 fiA4mTH
The Group
AEE
2009 2008

SEEAK SEENE
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
i £ B AR
Aluminium futures contracts BG4 879 - - (557)

Forward foreign exchange i 141 BE A 4

contracts - (83) - (580)
879 (83) - (1,137)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL% 85 3% % it A B 2 v
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18 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Aluminium future contracts

The Group uses commodity future contracts
to mitigate its market risk of aluminium price
fluctuation. The Group’s policy on the mitigation
of market risk of aluminium price fluctuation is
set out in Note 29(e). The notional contract value
outstanding at the balance sheet date and the related
terms are summarised as below:

18

o 13 B 85 e % W wE

A b T H (a)

(a)

mMBEAH

A S5 (0 ) 7 O 0D B S A A 1 4
L I Bl 9 i 455 e o A 4 1 DB
6 39 38 7 355 Tl a9 B SRE SHS Y R
29(e) MBI FH HRTFAZHEEH
1 B AR ] A R AR At 2

The Group
A H
2009 2008
“RELE e o= AN
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANR¥Tx NR¥F T
Purchase contracts 7. =g
Volume (tonne) B (M) 715 260
Market value i {E 12,161 2,995
Notional contract value R ZEEE 11,282 3,552
Fair value AFAH 879 (557)
Contract maturity date GHBIHHA January,
February, January,
March, February,
and April and March
2010 2009
S®-®E CEENE
“HAZHS AR
=HKNA =A

The market value of future contracts is based on
quoted market price at the balance sheet date. The
net unrealised holding gains on the future contracts
remeasured at fair value was RMB&879,000 as at 31
December 2009 (2008: losses of RMB557,000) and
the changes in the fair value were recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

W& A& E DL AS A T
PR R EENFETH =1
Ho AP EEFFTENHESH
P BN RSN R W N
879,00070 ( —E L /)N\AF: JHE AR
#557,00000) > 1M 4N T {H 5 B A 45
G Wi ai 3R AR

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% % it A PR 2 ¥
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18 Derivative financial instruments (continued)y 18 fiAE &k T H (4

(b) Forward foreign exchange contracts (b) 2 Wb BE 15 49
The Group has entered into forward foreign A 45 B L RT S7 % A AR G 4 4% iR A1
exchange contracts to mitigate its market risk of 7 38t B8l 119 77 055 Ja B » 5% 5% 6 2018 H
foreign exchange fluctuation. These instruments are DA 58 B A 2 T A B ) T 3
used solely to mitigate the market risk associated B o i JE P AR B R AR A

with the Group’s liabilities and not for trading or
speculation purposes.

The notional contract value outstanding at the R AR TPEZARAAEMER
balance sheet date and the related terms are A B 5 R M 2l G s

summarised as below:

2009
ZEFIE
The Group

A 4

Notional
amounts at

Forward original
rates currency Fair values
wRA ]
N
72 1Y) R R HREH ARk
(’000) RMB’000
(Tx) ARWTIT

Sell RMB/Buy United T AR

States Dollars (“USD”) HAETT
3 months to 6 months ZMEAZE=REHA 6.8340 1,080 (13)
6 months to 1 year SR 2 — 4 6.8294 1,578 (68)
6 months to 1 year AR A 2 — 4 6.7984 913 3
6 months to 1 year ANEA B 6.7984 2,089 13

Sell RMB/Buy Hong Kong %t AR MK/
Dollars (“HKD”) BT
3 months to 6 months =fMHZNMA 0.8840 9,800 (18)

(83)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B%§ 85 3% % it A BR 2 v
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18 Derivative financial instruments (continued)y 18 fi/E & @k T H (4)

(b) Forward foreign exchange contracts (continued) (b) 7 WA RE A 2 (A
2008
ZERENE
The Group
A
Notional
amounts at
Forward original
rates currency Fair values
WA B
G A ]
i 1) [ 3 HEEH AR: N
(’000) RMB 000
(k) AREFEFIL
Sell RMB/Buy USD BHHARYTEHAET
Less than 3 months =l A A 6.8533 1,754 120
Sell RMB/Buy Euro 7l NREE AT
3 months to 6 months =8 A 2= A 9.6827 1,387 (700)
(580)
The above derivatives are measured at fair value Lai A TERAEH A §§ TzEf
based on the valuation provided by the banks at ﬁﬁ#/\%ﬁﬁ'i wF jLE
the balance sheet date. The net unrealised holding +ZH=+—H: #/\yﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘f
losses on the forward contracts remeasured at fair 2 A A R BRI R
value was RMB83,000 as at 31 December 2009 S5 NI HE83,0007C ( —FZE /4« i
(2008: loss of RMB580,000) and the changes in the B R #580,000C) » 1 2 °F-{H 5
fair value were recognised in profit or loss. B HIJ i 48 f ERR o
19 Trade and other receivables 19 22 5 Je 3 i JE i 3k JH
The Group The Company
A%EH A% )
2009 2008 2009 2008

SERAE CEEAE CREAE CFEAE
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARWTFIE NRWTE ARBTE ARETE

Trade receivables 28 5 e W 3 TH 322,010 281,422 = -
Bills receivable FEW A% 138,843 138,544 - -

460,853 419,966 - -

Amounts due from subsidiaries & I B} B 2 1 *’A’ H = - 56,429 31,497

Other receivables, prepayments - fth JB UG 3 ~ T8 A 5UE
and deposits e 121,063 46,754 6,941 446
581,916 466,720 63,370 31,943

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5% 85 3% % i A PR 2 W)
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19
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

Certain bills receivable with carrying value of
RMB88,540,000 were pledged as securities for bank loans
of the Group as at 31 December 2009 (Trade receivables of
RMB25,000,000 and bills receivables of RMB26,346,000
were pledged as securities for bank loans of the Group as
at 31 December 2008) (Note 23(b)).

Included in trade and other receivables are amounts due
from related parties (Note 32(b)(i)). All of the other trade
and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts) and bills receivable with the
following aging analysis as of the balance sheet
date. The Group generally grants the credit period
to customers ranges from 60 days to 90 days,

19

A2 By B FL At JE WAL sk JH

WZEEZNFETZA=Z+—H: EEWE
By N R #88,540,0007T 2 4 ﬁ%ﬂﬂz%‘;
HE AR VE By A 2 AR AT R 2 B R (
2%/\@4-:)5]34-—5)&5]?%4%%
TH A K #525,000,0007C & JE Ui 2298 A R
26,346,0007C EL & 7 1F /5 A 42 [ R 17 & 3K
ZHER) (M EE23) ) -

JRE Wiz B T R TR T N A S T At R i 3 IR
(Ht7E32(b)(1) ) » T HAth s 5 B oA Bk
A TR A — A A i [ SR R A B 32 -

(a)  WREES BT

Tc%& LA JRE WK T 6L 4 52 5 I K

(71 BR 8 3 B B (E s 1R) M
ﬂﬁlﬁiﬁ LA &5 5 H 2 IR 2 i
e *Eﬁ%ﬂ%)f'Zﬁ,lﬁEﬁ ES
EEBE TR 258 — A F60
H 90 H o A5 J 2 {5 B BUR R

according to the credit history of each customer. B 5E29(a) °
The Group’s credit policy is set out in Note 29(a).
The Group
A 5

2009 2008
SEEAE CEEAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T IT
Current R4 460,365 419,966
3 to 6 months past due piing: AN [ D 115 -
More than 6 months past due 7S A DLk 373 -
Amount past due i ) 4 HE 488 -
460,853 419,966
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b)

Impairment losses

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors

and bills receivable directly (Note 2(h)).

The movements in the allowance for impairment
in respect of trade and other receivables during the
year are as follows:

19

o 11 B B e 2 W G

A2 Sy Be Fo At JE ek IE (4

(b)

U506 s 4R

A 1 R K B 4 2 k(e
BT B P RC Bk > BRI A S
{5 ARl e 8 2 W] REE R R FE L
T DU I (s 45 4 % WA R
Lo ME WSS 08 R (B AE2eh) ) -

AR TRAT Bl 52 B H At B WA T B
el 2 BEUITT

The Group
KM

2009 2008
“ERELE TRE)NAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fx ANR T
Balance at 1 January W—H—H Z &8k 470 470
Recognised ELERR 841 -
Write off 5 (172) -
Balance at 31 December e = B nhell = g =3 i 1,139 470

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s trade debtor
of RMB373,000 (2008: nil) was individually
determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivable related to a customer that was
in financial difficulties and management assessed
that the receivable is expected not to be recovered.
Consequently, a specific allowance for doubtful
debt of RMB373,000 was recognised.

Based on past experience, except for the above
amounts that the customers were unable to repay
the outstanding balance, the Group believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
trade and bills receivable not past due. Over 99%
of the total balances relate to customers that have a
good track record with the Group.

RoEENAFEF A=+ —H R
%@zﬂ?ﬂﬁzﬂ% KN B H373,00000
(ZFF)\AF 45 W Rl s e 7
Bl AE - & éfﬁlﬁﬂmﬁﬁuﬁz X TH B
ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬂlﬂﬁﬁzgﬁﬁ%ﬁ [kl
Al 5% S5 JE TR IE T 0 5IE AS T g
] o [H M > BB RR 2 4 8 R R A
£ NRH373,0007C

i SRy R g B N
%&@?T#ﬁ%z/f%ﬁ% ALE B AE
S 2 5 A W 22 22 B I i #TE
R i T 4 w5 U YE A - 1199 % 2
AR EIMARITRHKZ K
FAHB -

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% ¥ Bt A PR 2 W)

129



—

130

Annual Report 2009 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W 5 A Wit

20

21
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Pledged deposits

Bank deposits have been pledged to bank as securities for
certain banking facilities (Note 23(b)) and bills payable
(Note 22).

Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

20 OCIKHHfE

AT K ORI T MATIE o T HATE

B (W7E230) ) RN 28R (Hfat22) 2 V&

3o
21 Bl KBS EY

(a) HBERISHFHEDEE:

The Group The Company

A A ]

2009 2008 2009 2008
CERRME CERNE DERBRAUE ZERNE
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB 000

ANREETL AR TC ANRBETE ARETI

Cash at bank and SRAT R T4

in hand

279,836

214,905 3,936 20,356
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21 Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 21 HekB&EFEY @)
(b)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) B3 8 Wi v ) B3 Pr A9 B 4 2 B
generated from operations: M :
2009 2008
ZEZIE CRE N
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 7t AR T N RWET T
Operating activities FEE- 37
Profit before taxation R Bt Al i £ 81,696 38,017
Adjustments for: BN B 25 H T A
Depreciation oreg 6(c) 38,398 26,929
Amortisation 1 54 6(c) 3,124 1,338
Interest income on bank SRATAEFORLE A
deposits 5 (4,430) (6,622)
Interest expenses SRAT B ORI E BH 52
on bank loans 6(a) 30,965 33,282
Gain on disposal of WS AR E R
assets classified as R IR AR
held for sale 5 - (11,637)
Loss on disposal of W R
property, plant and A% A T 15
equipment 5 240 -
Unrealised net (gain)/ A1 AR < il T
loss of derivative KB (k)
financial instruments 5 1E 1 AR (796) 1,137
Foreign exchange loss/ A1 s 18,
(gain) (M 5) 61 (471)
Waivers of liabilities LEE AL 28(c)(ii) 3,054 -
Changes in working capital: 5 ¥ & 4 2 58 8)
Change in inventories fEE 2 55 (47,878) 43,293
Change in trade and 22 5y B F A B ik
other receivables I 53 W) (110,466) 34,921
Change in trade and 22 5y B oAt e At
other payables FIH 2 ) 102,484 (180,535)
Change in deferred IR HE IS A 2 5 )
income 62,157 -
Cash generated from/ Eupift ()
(used in) operations B4 158,609 (20,348)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5% 85 3% % Bt A PR 2 W)
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22 Trade and other payables 22 2R 5y B H At BE A Kk JH
Ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables is as 22 Gy WEAS 3 TE K R A SR 45 2 R 43 AT
follows: T~
The Group The Company
A% H AR
2009 2008 2009 2008

SRRUE CFLE ZRRUE FTNE
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB 000
ARBTE ANRFETT AREETEZ ARFTL

Amounts due to subsidiaries JREASF B Ja 2 7 3 IH - - 665 4,648
Trade payables 38 5 JE A 3R IR 123,656 93,318 = -
Bills payable (i) L ANES 7)) 66,000 28,807 = -
Other payables and accruals — H At HE A} 28 K FEAF %2 A 133,265 71,424 1,767 2,039
Deferred income (Note 25) AW (M iE25) 3,212 1,995 = -

326,133 195,544 2,432 6,687
Included in trade and other payables are amounts due to T gy B Ho A JE AT K T, 455 R A B 2y R
related parties (Note 32(b)(ii)). All of the other trade and (Mt i£32(b) (i) )~ T A HoAth 28 5 B HoAth g
other payables are expected to be settled or recognised as A 3V T U — 4 B A SR R s A
income within one year or are repayable on demand. o R SRR -

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v
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22 Trade and other payables (continued) 22 A2 5 B H At BE A sRE (49)

A8 Gy Fo F A A S TR 355 58 ) A O I
HEAT SR HOR G55 H 2 BRES AT AN T o
Fh AN T3] 36 8 e 452 T 2 AR B P30 H %90

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables and
bills payable with the following aging analysis as of the
balance sheet date. The credit period granted by various

suppliers ranges from 30 days to 90 days. H o
The Group
A% 4
2009 2008
SERBAE CEFNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T N R WEF T
Due within 1 month or on demand —1E A W 8
JIE LSRR 40,188 37,485
Due after | month but within 3 months  — {7 & A =1 1 A 2| 113,468 76,520
Due after 3 months but within 6 months =1 A £ {H 758 H (A 2| 1§ 36,000 8,120
189,656 122,125
(i) Bills payable as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 were (i) N oEENFER FENET A
secured by pledged bank deposits as disclosed in Note 20. o H 2 AT SR B B RE20 T 4 iR 2
C KR SRAT A7 KM AR o
& &f, HE AR
23 Loans and borrowings 23 BHAER
(a) Loans and borrowings were repayable as (a) Bk R RAMBWT
follows:
The Group
7 45 M
2009 2008
SEREAE CEFERAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AR ¥F
Within one year —4ER 697443 559,329
After 2 years but within 5 years W A& {H HAE A 150000 - -
847,443 559,329

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% ¥ Bt A PR 2 W)
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23 Loans and borrowings (continued) 23 BREEE )
(b) Terms (b) 16 3%
The Group
L
2009 2008
ZEELE TR
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR EF NRET T
Secured bank loans AR ERAT B 3K 425,813 260,329
Unsecured bank loans MR ERIT B 421,630 299,000
847,443 559,329

R H - A AT RAT &AL

The secured bank loans were secured by the

following assets of the Group as at the balance B LA & AR
sheet date.
The Group
Ak 4 )
2009 2008
“EFLE %S
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARE T N ¥T T
Carrying value of assets: 5 MR T A -
Property, plant and equipment LESN N & ]

(Note 13) (Mtit13) 21,774 -
Lease prepayment (Note 14) AL & (Bt at14) 150,870 -
Inventories (Note 17) & (Kit17) = 146,990
Trade receivables (Note 19) o U KB (M aE19) = 25,000
Bills receivable (Note 19) JE s S 0% (Bt n9) 88,540 26,346
Pledged deposits (Note 20) CHCHRAR R (B 720) 47,085 25,036
Total At 308,269 223,372

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v
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Loans and borrowings (continued)

(b)

Terms (continued)

The Group’s banking facilities amounted
to RMB328,000,000 (31 December 2008:
RMB773,000,000) are guaranteed by the related
parties.

Banking facilities of the Group totalling
RMB1,267,222,000 (31 December 2008:
RMB879,346,000) were utilised to the extent
of RMB1,022,640,000 (31 December 2008:
RMB594,085,000).

One (2008: Nil) of the Group’s banking facilities
are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating
to certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 29(b). As at 31
December 2009, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached.

23

o 13 B 85 e % W wE

¥ BB ()

(b)

Wk ()

AEHZBRITHEEANRK
328,000,0007T ( = FF /N4E+H
=+—H: AR ¥773,000,0007C)
F T 7 7 4 IR

A A IR ¥#1,267,222,000
T ZEENFE+LZHAH=T—H:
A R #879,346,0000C) 2 #1715 &
o AR H1,022,640,0000C ( &
FENFF+_HAH=Z+—H: ARW¥

594,085,0007C) S E B A -

AL —IE ( FETAE ) A7
FHRAMFMENARALERLE TE
FEAMERLRZ 4 (F Rk 4
Pl B R 5T oL 2 B AR A BE) 1R O AT AE
B o i A A R L A B4R
B2 A5 B H A B R B 32 o AN
MR LR E PR EREA - f
B A 45 [ 3 i B R 6 B 2 HE
R EE29(b) o A ERIJLE T A
= H o MR AT A BB R
BUfE B2 24 -

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% ¥ Bt A PR 2 W)

135



—

136 Annual Report 2009 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao 13 B 85 e 2 W R

24  Obligations under finance leases 24 WEMHBEME
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had obligations under REERZNFET A= —H A EEA
finance leases repayable as follows: ERZMEH BT
The Group
A 4 )
2009
“RFIE

Present value
of the minimum Total minimum
lease payments lease payments

7Ll KA
sk 2 BUE ik 48R
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRWT T N BRWT T

Within one year — 4N 22321 25,025
After 1 years but within 2 years — R EWFE RN 23,315 25,025
After 2 years but within 5 years WHEEERFEN 24,364 25,035
| e 50,060
70,000 75,085
Less: total future interest expenses W R ARR S BE S AR (5,085)
Present value of lease obligations HEEMEZBE 70,000

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v
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25 Deferred income 25 B
The Group had received a government grant in connection A 8 O e 31 A BR A v R YL VG AR AR E R
with an acquisition of a land use right for the new [ Wi B b 8 P RE 2 TBORT AT B 4 o R% R
production plant in Jiangxi Province of the PRC. The H o I T BUR % T AR AR B Sy R A
subsidy is granted to the Group as development fund of the HZ o R&E 4w
investment project by local municipal government in the
PRC.
This government grant is recorded as deferred income and I Ul Bl 4 RO AR ZE WA > 3l DL AR
is to be recognised as income on a straight-line basis over AT B 57 PR REE 2 0 4 B i R
the expected useful live of related land use right (Note WA (BffiE56) ) »
5(1)).
The Group
A4 M
2009
ZEFIE
RMB’000
ARWF

Total deferred income % SE g A AR 62,157
Less: current portion included in trade and other I8 : # A 38 5y S oAt JE AF ik IH 2

payables (note 22) RESAR 23 (M 7E22) (1,249)

60,908

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% ¥ Bt A PR 2 W)
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26 Income tax in the consolidated balance 26 MRERTEERABRENZIEH
sheet
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance (a) R EEAE AR RN W R E
sheet represents: i
The Group
ALEHE
2009 2008
RN TRTNA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREF N RIET T
At 1 January w—H—H 595 2,086
Provision for PRC income tax w45 A A
(Note 7(a)) (M7t7¢a)) 27,173 8,862
Provision for PRC land RN o R T
appreciation tax (Note 7(a)) (Mtit7ca)) = 232
PRC income tax paid CL A e I i 45 B (8,504) (10,353)
PRC land appreciation tax paid EL A Hp ] - b 2 (E B - (232)
At 31 December wtZH=+—H 19,264 595

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v
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26 Income tax in the consolidated balance 26 RETEEABRANZIAH

sheet (continued) (44 )
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) O T 0 90 i Bt D M LM
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) N GEAEE BB LR 2 ET
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and BLIHE & (5 ) AR 43 B 5
the movements during the year are as follows: BaE
The Group
A%
Change in
fair value Impairment Government
of derivative Impairment loss on bad grant in
financial loss on and doubtful deferred
instruments inventory debts  Tax loss (1) income Total
T Al i A
THZ 63 P4 R BABZ
ATHES O WAEEE  WEER BUEEHR) BUNWBE Mt

RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB’000
ARBTE ARETLE ARFTE ARWTLZ ARKTE ARWTI

Deferred tax arising from it 7 2 2 38 4 i S

At 1 January 2008 e YN

—~H—H - - - - - -
Recognised in profit or loss i 8 45 1A i 38 153 237 - - - 390
At 31 December 2008 REEENE

+ZA=+—H 153 237 - - - 390
At I January 2009 RZEENA

—H—H 153 237 - - - 390
Recognised in profit or loss i 8 4 1A i 38 (241) (237) 105 519 15,539 15,685

At 31 December 2009 REBZBZNAE

+ZA=Z+—H (88) - 105 519 15,539 16,075
(i) The tax losses incurred by subsidiaries (i) A H R A R ST 2 B JE 4 ] BT
incorporated in the PRC expire five years after FE AR 2 L T Jis 18 A 7 A AR AR
they are incurred. ERG

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% ¥ Bt A PR 2 W)
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26

Income tax in the consolidated balance
sheet (continued)

(0

Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised

No deferred tax assets in respect of accumulated
tax losses in Xinggao Aluminium of RMB625,000
as at 31 December 2008 had been recognised as
it is not probable that the future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be
generated. Xinggao Aluminium did not earn any
taxable profits before its deregistration in August
20009.

At 31 December 2009, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries amounted to RMB146,481,000
(2008: RMB59,445,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of RMB7,324,000 (2008: RMB2,972,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
as the Company controls the dividend policy of the
foreign-invested enterprise and the directors have
determined that the profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v

26

Annual Report 2009 4

R EERBRRANZITGB

(#f)

(0

A HE BB BLIR AR

MFEENE+_H=+—H
4 70 L 1 0 3 7 BN R #9625,000
JGZ BT B TE s A R AR A B
JE o J5 DR 2 S 4 AT AR A A s AR AT T
By 2 AR ME R B U A o B 5 2
A A SUAE N H SO FE A
e EBCAT: ] 1 A o Vi )

W _FERFT_A=+—H>
B A SE | b B MR A AR A
BL %6 R 2 B mE 22 H OB AR
146,481,0007C ( —~FF /N4 AR
#59,445,0007C ) ° 4 2E BiIE A 5 A
[ #7,324,00000 ( —FE )VF A
[ #2,972,0000C ) Mff 48 5 53 IR 3% 4%
P B8 s P IE AT 2 B E T LARERR > TR
[ 2 AN w22 il A0 o 5 e 26 2 ik
BB > 1 3O E IR i Al
B 43 R Vi ) o
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27 Share capital 27 AR
(a) Movements of the authorised and issued share (a) HE_FEZNFET_H=1+—HI
capital of the Company during the year ended 31 SRR RN 2 e AT IR
December 2009 are as follows: ZEREINT
2009 2008
ZER0E ZEENE
No. of Nominal value of No. of Nominal value of
Shares fully paid shares Shares fully paid shares
o 8 H B ey o H BUE b (8
Note ('000)  HKD000 RMB (‘000)  HKD000 RMB
equivalents equivalents
‘000 ‘000
it (TH) Tt F (TH) T ¥l
ARETx NE#T
Authorised: HiE:
Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.01 M {0.01# 70 2
each Evill (c) 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ~ CE 47 R AL B ML :
fully paid:
At 1 January H=A—H 418,000 4,180 3,731 - - -
Arising from the Reorganisation [l % 411 & 1 ©)(i) - - - 20,000 200 178
Shares issued under the placing ~ fRIER & K 2 5k
and global offering BEBETZRG (e)(ii) = = = 106,590 1,066 959
Capitalisation issue GARIL LT (c)(iii) = = = 291,410 2914 2,594
At 31 December BE-AZ+-0 418,000 4,180 3731 418,000 4,180 371

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S % 85 3% % Bt A PR 2 ¥
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27 Share capital (continued) 27 AR (4
(b) Authorised share capital of the Company (b) A W) 2k AR
The Company was incorporated on 13 September ALAR—EELENLA+TZH
2007 with an authorised share capital of kM S s 1 AR 25 100,000
HK$100,000 divided into 10,000,000 shares JC > 41 £410,000,000/%% %5 JB T {£0.01
of HK$0.01 each. On 29 February 2008, the WLz e M ZFENE A
authorised share capital of the Company was ZAJUH BT 53 41510,000,000
increased to HK$200,000 by the creation of a T A B T (50.01%E 7T 2 By > AR
further 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On ] 32 7€ i A 15 0 %£200,0009 7T © i
31 March 2008, the authorised share capital of TEENFEZH =+ —H BB
the Company was increased to HK$10,000,000 14 55 41980,000,000/8 4F B 1 {H0.01
by the creation of a further 980,000,000 shares of W T 2 By - AR ON m) 2 AR
HK$0.01 each. 10,000,000 7T ©
(c) Issue of share capital (¢) AT A
@ Upon Reorganisation 1i) A
The Company was incorporated with 72 H] 410,000,000/ & B
10,000,000 nil-paid ordinary shares at T fH0.01% 76 2 A& Sk 3K
HK$0.01 per share. On 29 February 2008, R Rl & Al A e e
the ownership of Xingfa Aluminium Pte. NEZH Z+JUH > Xingfa
Ltd. was transferred from the Controlling Aluminium Pte. Ltd.Z A
Shareholders to Xingfa BVI. After the HE Py 42 W TR R 5 T Xingfa
completion of the Reorganisation on 29 BVI et =& F NE N
February 2008, the Company acquired ZJuR EHE AR AN
the ownership of Xingfa BVI from the A 1] #2 HE RS U B Xing fa
Controlling Shareholders in consideration of BVIZ #EA HE HAELLF
which satisfied by: G A AT
. allotted and issued, credited as fully J Tia) 422 GG PR T o M
paid, 10,000,000 ordinary shares to 1710,000,000 8% A fE
the Controlling Shareholders; and 5 By e 2 5
K
. credited as fully paid at par the J A 8 AR ST IR AT
10,000,000 nil-paid ordinary shares 210,000,000 /1% & %4
issued on incorporation. JBE A e 4 T A
WRB Sy B2 -

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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Share capital (continued)

()

Issue of share capital (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Issue of shares under the placing and
global offering

On 31 March 2008, the Company issued
106,590,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each, at a price of HK$2.28 per share in
connection with the placing and global
offering, and raised gross proceeds of
approximately HK$243,025,000 (equivalent
to RMB218,722,000). The proceeds of
HK$1,066,000 (equivalent to RMB959,000)
representing the par value, were credited to
the Company’s share capital. The remaining
proceeds of HK$241,959,000 (equivalent to
RMB217,763,000), before the share issue
expenses of RMB19,009,000, were credited
to the share premium account.

Capitalisation issue

On 31 March 2008, pursuant to the written
resolution of shareholders of the Company
passed on 29 February 2008, 291,410,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company were allotted and issued at par
value to the Controlling Shareholders. The
amount was paid up in full by applying an
amount of HK$2,914,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,594,000) standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company
after the issue of shares under placing and
global offering.

27

WA (47)

(0

o 13 B B e 2 W G

BATIRA (#)

(i)

(iii)

R IR B0 B J 2 TR 3 B AT
t

W oEEANFZA =+ —
H o A 2 &) uk il B & 4 Bk
B A28 T 2 E
K% 3£ 47106,590,000 % & %
T {50.01 %5 o0 2 % 48 f% »
%4 BT A5 A TE BB A
243,025,000%5 7t (FH %5 7 A
[ #218,722,00078 ) ° ff 1%
K IE1,066,0008 7T (AH 2 7t
AN KR %959,00070) # &
T8> S5k AR @A -
IR B A BE AT B S N R
19,009,0007T il 2 % F i 1%
K IE241,959,000% J6 (41 %
™R #217,763,00000) 5
A B AT Y AR R

B # T

WNZEENFE=ZH =+ —
H o MREA A /A =&
FNE A ZFHILHE R
2 EM PR > AN A )
BE B o F2 T TC 9 Mo #E AT
291,410,000 8% 45 i T {E0.01
Wt WA - RSN
) AR L& K kg
BEAT B AR B AS o =) B i 1
R 912,914,000 76 (FH 55 i
A R #2,594,00000) 2 #E R
WL -
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28 Reserves

(a)

—

Annual Report 2009 4 #t

28  ffhi
Movements of reserves (a) it 1 5 B
The reconciliation between the opening and AR B A E A 25 0 2 ) T
closing balances of each component of the Group’s R R 2 B IR RO A5 G HE A S )
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated o A% T I RE g A0 BB 43 I A
statement of changes in equity. Details of the W B AR R 2 S B sE R A R
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:
The Company A4 H]
Share Other Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
Betrifd  EMRREE WLGE REEAM At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARWTLE ARWTZ ARFETLT ARNTT ARKTIE
At 1 January 2008 W ZEE N
~A—H - - - - -
Arising from B EL
Reorganisation - 441,976 - - 441,976
Share issued under RIERE R 2Bk
the placing and global BERTZ IR
offering (Note 27(c)(i1)) (BtiE27(c)ii)) 217,763 - - - 217,763
Share issuance costs A BT WA
(Note 27(c)(ii)) (W#t27(c) i) (19,009) - - - (19,009)
Capitalisation issue EARNET
(Note 27(c)(iii)) (Bt it27(c)ii)) (2,594) - - - (2,594)
Total comprehensive A JE A T 4R AR
income for the year - - (116) 31,135 31,019
At 31 December 2008 RFFNE
TZH=+—H 196,160 441,976 (116) 31,135 669,155
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE
—H—H 196,160 441,976 (116) 31,135 669,155
Dividends approved HEEMEZ KR
in respect of
the previous year - - - (20,900) (20,900)
Total comprehensive A JE A T4 5 R
income for the year - - 27 39,824 39,851
At 31 December 2009 R -EFNLE
+ZH=+—H 196,160 441,976 89) 50,059 688,106

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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Reserves (continued) 28 Gl fh (av)
(b)  Dividends b  BE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders ) AAEPEZ JEAT K 24 vl s SR
of the Company attributable to the year B
2009 2008
“ERELE ZERFINA
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥Tx AR IFTF o
Final dividend proposed after RAEE H R B
the balance sheet date of TRAT 2 AR A 1 S
RMBO0.033 per ordinary share g B 3 3 I
AR 0.0337C 13,794 20,900
A final dividend of RMB0.033 per ordinary HE A R I A B AR F R A
share (2008: RMBO0.021 per ordinary share) JE SR YR 8 A e S R
to all equity shareholders of the Company e N R #0.03370 (= FF N
have been proposed by the directors and A g R N R 00,021
are subject to approved by the shareholders TC) o M ZE AR TR A I R A
in the annual general meeting. No special ERE B A R
dividend (2008: RMBO0.029) was proposed NI A R ) A D RE 4 I
to equity shareholders of the Company in FIRATHF AR B (ZF TN
2009. 4 NR0.0297T) -
The final dividends proposed after the NI i MER§ =t
balance sheet date has not been recognised VR AT 2 A A e S 51 A ke 520
as liabilities at the balance sheet date. Ao
(ii)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i)  RERRERRMNZ E—MH
of the Company attributable to the B BAF PEZ JE AT K 2 v s
previous financial year, approved and TR B
paid during the year
2009 2008
“ERELE TERER A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fr AR ¥T T
Final and special dividends in Wb — 8] B AR
respect of the previous financial A AE A T K
year, approved and paid during IRAT 2 K1 K
the year, of RMBO0.05 per Rl e S
ordinary share (2008: Nil) B e 3 4 %
N R #0.057C
(ZET)NAF ) 20,900 -
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28

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v

Reserves (continued)

()

Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

(ii)

Share premium and other reserve

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account and other reserve account of
the Company are distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The other reserve of the Group represents
the difference between (a) the nominal value
of share capital and the existing balance on
the share premium account of a subsidiary
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the Reorganisation of the Group on
29 February 2008.

The other reserve of the Company
represents the difference between (a) the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the Reorganisation of the Group on
29 February 2008.

Capital reserve

On 30 June 2009, Xingfa Group and Xingfa
Innovation had agreed to waive their
remaining receivables due from the Group
in connection with the operating lease of
land use rights and plants respectively.
These waivers of liabilities amounting to
RMB2,004,000 and RMB1,050,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2009 by Xingtfa
Group and Xingfa Innovation respectively
were regarded as equity transactions and
were recorded in capital reserve account.

28

(o)
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(ii)
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AL 2 HAb G5 LT W
HZFEBE (U UM E
AR v 5 B 2 A AR T B
BLA &5 B (b) A8 2 A AR 9%
W oEE)NAFEH T JLH
A [ H A B AR MR T B AT 2
Ay T (-

AN F 2 HAb Rk 4 46 LA
BT () C WU S
A 2B A EE RE S B(b)A
2 FRRGE —F T \E A
U R AR G A A S
11 8547 2 Fe 0y T A

B il

W EEIVENA =T H
S 2 18 B ) R
B T I A8 25 43 3k A A
HE K i 5 2 S5 A E AR T I
WA 2 BE - B %
EREF+ A=+ 01k
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28 Reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

PRC statutory reserves

Guangdong Xingfa is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise in the PRC, it is required
to transfer at least 10% of its net profit,
as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general
reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before distribution
of a dividend to equity shareholders.
Guangdong Xingfa has transferred a
net profit of RMB9,930,000 (2008:
RMB5,967,000) calculated base on 12%
(2008: 12%) of its net profit under the PRC
accounting rules and regulations to the
statutory reserves in 2009.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
companies outside the PRC.

Distributable reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2009 was RMB688,106,000 (2008:
RMB669,155,000).

28 Gl fh (4w)

fo 11 B 85 e % W wE

() FEHEEEME ()

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

I 75 GE il

JE BB A PR A AN A
2 HMR IR P B g 5T Al
KR 518 268 1) 2 D 109 43¢
IR B AR
R B R B AR 150% - 1
A L Tt A R 43 UR B S
T B R HEAT o
TV JE R g O R4 b
B g AR K R ) 4 4k
F12% (=TI 12%)
FHE 2 & A A R %59,930,000
o (T EE L NR K
5,967,0007C ) ¥ £ 2 1 2 ik
{ﬁo

FEE 58, 1o 15

BEE 5. i 6 475 DR 40 0 o o 35
B Y B 3R T 7 PR 2 P
A RE 525 5

HJ {1 2 I ik 1

WZEFEINFETZH =1 —
H > A2 w2 6] A4 50 IR fof
HEE B N R 688,106,000
Jo (U EE VA AR
669,155,0007C) ©
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28

Reserves (continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance
at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
the Group defines net debt as loans and borrowings
plus unaccrued purposed dividends, less cash and
cash equivalents and pledged deposits. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity less
unaccrued proposed dividends.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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28 Reserves (continued) 28

(d)  Capital management (continued) d EAREM ()

T JUAE > AL E 2 R T
B RS 0% 2 R -
oy HE T B B b SR AR 4E )R] RE R
H ) R i R S AT RS B AT T

During 2009, the Group’s strategy was to maintain
the net debt-to capital ratio below 90%. In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may

adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity

shareholders, issue new shares or raise new debt

T SRR BT B

financing.
The Group
N L
2009 2008
“ERMLE TEER A
Notes RMB’000 RMB 000
M 7 AR¥F NRWF T
Current liabilities: L B=R
— Loans and borrowings —BREMEE 23 697,443 559,329
— Obligation under — RlE A AT
finance lease 24 22,321 -
Non-current liabilities: EE=E
— Loans and borrowings —BREMEE 23 150,000 -
— Obligation under — RlE A AT
finance lease 24 47,679 -
Total debt 55 KRR 917,443 559,329
Add: Proposed dividends i+ B &k AL S 28(b) 13,794 20,900
Less: Cash and cash W B A R & EY
equivalents 21 (279,836) (214,905)
Pledged deposits eI 20 (89,552) (36,646)
Adjusted net debt A5 R AT 0 561,849 328,678
Total equity HE 5 A 716,214 663,762
Less: Proposed dividends ik : # iR % S 28(b) (13,794) (20,900)
Adjusted capital SRR G 702,420 642,862
Adjusted net B FAREREILE
debt-to-capital ratio 80% 51%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject

to externally imposed capital requirements.

A ) B LB Ja 2 RIS 52 AP S A B E

Bl Al <
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29 Financial risk management and fair
values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and
the financial risk management policies and practices used
by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. In
respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 60 to 90 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the balance sheet date,
16% (2008: 14%) and 33% (2008: 47%) of the
total trade and other receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively within the industrial
aluminium profiles segment and construction
aluminium profiles segment.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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29 Financial risk management and fair 29 ik B BE R P AE am)

values (continued)

(a)  Credit risk (continued) (a) fa SR (4
The maximum exposure to credit risk without Bk % 2 s s SRR CORFF AT
taking account of any collateral held is represented fl I RE AR ) B R G E A E RN
by the carrying amount of each financial asset, FamERE (B EER TR
including derivative financial instruments, in the ZHRTEE (8PN BRAT AT (B ) o
balance sheet after deducting any impairment e B 53 1T 20t A 2 WA s 2 B 4
allowance. Except for the financial guarantees PRAN > A S [ 3 4 (4 AT o] A 4%
given by the Company as set out in note 31, the PR > B0l A B B sl A 8 R R 215
Group does not provide any other guarantees which AR B o TR &S R A S B I
would expose the Group or the Company to credit PR TR 2 2 B e {5 B0 JRUBGE A B 5
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in 314K % -

respect of these financial guarantees at the balance
sheet date is disclosed in note 31.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the A B A 5 B3 22 ) T A B i 3 T
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade TR Z 2 A5 B B 2 o — 25 R AL 3
and other receivables are set out in note 19. OB O B EEL9
(b)  Liquidity risk (b)  WEE &)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be UL < S B A A A A R AT R
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall 1 BB AT IR R o A 4R T Y BOR
due. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor T 7 A e S0 B 4 T oR S ST A
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with LD HEORAEFRE AR BLE
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains it I M 2 PR M M R AL R A M
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed B 4 > DAREAS e M 2 1R 1 U )
lines of funding from major financial institutions to Bk

meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S % 85 3% % Bt A PR 2 ¥
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29 Financial risk management and fair 29 i B BE R P AE am)

values (continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b)  TRENE SR ()
The following table details the remaining NERFEION S H AR B A
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of B2 TG K E I TG #)
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based R BLBLE R (A% A 4 F %
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including (N E)) R A5 E B 2 BLAT A
interest payments computed using contractual rates REE 2 RS IR ) A 5 2
or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance itz R HWIEHE

sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

2009 2008
“EENE “EENE
Contractual
Contractual undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow/(inflow) cash outflow/(inflow)
BHAMRRE
RUABBAERE/ (KA) i/ (EA)
More than 1 More than 2 Balance Balance
Within 1 year but  years but sheet Within 1 sheet
yearoron  lessthan  less than carrying  year or on carrying
demand 2 years 5 years Total amount demand Total amount
~ERE R WER REARE R BREAME

Bk MEER HRER Wi RmE BEK gk RmiE
RMB'OOO  RMB'009  RMBO0 ~ RMB'0O9  RMB'00O  RMBUOO  RMB'O0O  RMB'O00
ARWTH ARWTx ARBTHA ARBTA ARWTFA ARETL ARWTL ARKTL

Bank loans BATER 717,030 5657 165900 888587 847443 STIS®L  STIS®L 55939
Finance lease liabilities MEHEAR 25,025 25,025 25,035 75,085 70,000 - - -
Trade and other payables 5 BB RERFR 326,133 S - N6 61 195544 195544 195,544

1068188 30682 190935 1289805 143876 77026 TR TS8T3

Forward foreign exchange EHSMERH
contracts
- outflow =i 47,308 - - 47,308 26,038 26,038
- inflow —HA (48,325) - - (48,325) (27,675) (21,675)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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29 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(0

T 5 R R W Rk

29 <ol LK A BE & P AE (40

Interest rate risk (c) 1 2 )R b
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily A 2 R R B B B RAT
from borrowings from banks. Borrowings issued at B o 1V B F) 3R I [ 52 B g
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group 843 T A A AFE B JE R 2 B 4 T
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest ) 23R R B B 2 T (B ) %6 S B o A 4
rate risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate 9]l A W % R R A T
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) 3C(3H) °
below.
1)) Interest rate profile @) Vg3 &
The following table details the interest N RIS BN A H A
rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing BAE 82 B AL
borrowings at the balance sheet date.
The Group
KEH
2009 2008
SRELE “ERAE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates Amount rates Amount
kS B BEBA% k3
000 ‘000
i T
Fixed rate borrowings: ERHE:
Finance lease liabilities MERERR 4.38% 70,000 -
Bank loans RITHR 4.78% 433,540 4.62% -531% 356,346
503,540 356,346
Variable rate borrowings FaMGE
Bank loans RITRX 1.29% -5.31% 413903 49%-661% 202983
Total borrowings fE B A 917,443 559,329
Fixed rate borrowings as a E RS EEAEE ML
percentage of total borrowings 55% 64%
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29 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all
other variable held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit
after taxation and retained profits by
approximately RMB6,555,000 (2008: RMB
1,367,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date.
The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual balance
sheet date. The analysis has been performed
on the same basis for 2008.

(d) Currency risk

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC
government. The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

@) Forecast transactions

Depreciation or appreciation of the
Renminbi against foreign currencies can
affect the Group’s results. The Group
hedges certain of its estimated foreign
currency exposure in respect of committed
future sales and purchases and highly
probable forecast sales and purchases. The
Group used forward exchange contracts to
mitigate its currency risk. All of the forward
exchange contracts have maturities of less
than one year after the balance sheet date.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v

29

Annual Report 2009 4 #t

<b il JE\ i A B B o PR )

()

(d)

AR B ()

(ii)

1R L 7T

REEEBIE A=
Ho Gt Al R b5 T
FH 100 2k 2 > 7 HoAth fir 5 5
BAE R AN 5 BB AR
i FIAR > A 4R E 22 i A 51
b0 % N R 6,555,000
T EE N R
1,367,0007C) °

bR e A T AR AR
REHOREERAMER N
BiA% 2 > I © R AE 7%
HEfFfE 2 i KR e &
il TR BT R % 2 A A B
b o EFRECT §8 10018 5 B 45
BRI A RREE T
ARG H TR 2 45 BT fig
Sy 2 AT AL o o B R
TE /MR 2 AT -

£ R B

PN e S ]
e < BEE ) v 1 2 52 B R T it
T 2 A HE R ] o A A ] 3 B 3 LA
S SE RS M B 2 T Re B W L Ah 2
B W EHE 2 845 SO R 2 ] A
Bt o w% L By £ 2 B T X KR -

(i)

HH % 5

PN 2 S =)
e R SUES RS SU )
HAETHBRCOEL HRHE
Je i B LA R b A mT REdEAT
T8 B R 2 Al R A
JaR i A 4 3 A7 3 o A B2 T
1 1) 40 A1 5 46 9 L
WL B o T A T BT A1 T
ZENVW A R A AR 4R
K



—

Annual Report 2009 4

29 Financial risk management and fair 29 ik B BE R P AE am)
values (continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) ) BWREE ()
(ii)  Exposure to currency risk i) I B
The following table details the Group’s TARFESIA S A A5 H TR
exposure at the balance sheet date to DA Al A B SR B LUSh 2
currency risk arising from recognised assets HoAth B W RHE 2 DR &
or liabilities denominated in a currency oA R BT E AR 2 A R R R
other than the functional currency of the Wt 25 Hm 5 AR
entity to which they relate. For presentation HRIE 2 B EE LRSS
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are W LRSS H 2 BLE SR .
shown in Renminbi, translated using the WP I EH BB LA
spot rate at the year end date. Difference AR 29 BT A A 2 R
resulting from the translation of the SR AELE A
financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency is
excluded.
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
ZERUEFZAZS A C“EENEFZAZSH
HKD USD Euro HKD UsD Euro
e e Bt T ES Bkt
000 000 000 ‘000 ‘000 000
Fr Fr Fr T T T
Trade and other 3 55 B HAb e A 3R
receivables 3,405 10,735 - 1,669 7,925 300
Cash and cash B4 R4S E Y
equivalents 21,647 5,703 - 621 185 -
Pledged deposits CLE 7 - 5 8 - - 90
Trade and other 38 55 I H Al A 3
payables (535) (717) (38) - (477) (48)
Loans and borrowings 7 J ft £ (69,800) (5,660) = - (1,671) (1,300)
Gross exposure arising L FERE ¥ 7 St £ %
from recognised 7 2 BB A A
assets and liabilities (45,283) 10,066 (30) 2,290 5,962 (958)
Notional amounts of HMAMNEG R 24K
forward foreign B
exchange contracts 9,800 5,659 - - 1,754 1,387
Net exposure JEL B A (35,483) 15,725 (30) 2,290 7716 429

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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29 Financial risk management and fair 29 4R JEL

values (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d)
(ii) Exposure to currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which

the Group has significant exposure at the

Annual Report 2009 4

P R o P E a)

W R ()

(ii)

b W B R 0 ()

IR PE T

TREURHAZMR&EH
A KT BRI 2 B AR %
H A BT 5 8 > S il 5T A Ja
B st B R AN B> AR
R0 A% i 1) M £ B ik A1) AT e

balance sheet date had changed at that date, i B2 B I 5 ) o
assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.
2009 2008
SRELE “REAF
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) in profit after  (decrease) in profit after
foreign tax and foreign tax and
exchange rate retained profit  exchange rate  retained profit
6% HERBLR%
bW,/ WARRE ERLE/ WARRE
(TH#) @WHZPE (F#)  wWHzEE
000 ‘000
124 124
United States Dollars ¥ 1% 601 6% 2,294
Hong Kong Dollars 7 1% 349 6% 103
Results of the analysis as presented in the EREIZ A R A

above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling
at the balance sheet date for presentation
purposes.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v

B 4% ] LUAT I S e R
iR 2 BRBLR i A 2 A kR
55 2 > AL 2 5 B R0 A
BH MRS Iy N R W o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)
(ii) Exposure to currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
balance sheet date, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group
which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2008.

Commodity price risk on aluminium

Aluminium ingots are the major raw materials
of the Group’s products which account for
approximately 80% of total cost of sales.
Fluctuations on commodity price of aluminium will
have a significant impact on the Group’s earnings,
cash flows as well as the value of the inventories.
The Group uses its future contracts traded on the
Shanghai Futures Exchange to reduce its risks
arising from fluctuations in aluminium price.
The Group enters future contracts based on the
inventories on hand, expected usage of aluminium
and sales requirements. The Group considers that it
is not cost effective to maintain a highly effective
hedge on transaction basis.

The outstanding balances of aluminium future
contracts entered as at the balance sheet date are
disclosed in Note 18.

29

o 11 B 85 e % W wE

<t il JL K A BE B P AL (40

d) BWEREEE ()
(i) OB B R E ()

TR EE 73 B (R 5 ME 2 5 ) £
O 1 LAEE R R R S R A
B AR I ZEUR 32 41
AL em TR,
BLAE LSO B N T fiE
B LIANE T EHE Z £ R
ox ] [ A K T B K
TE o 43 e Az AN 6 455 #5508 A
KW B IR AL M 25
BWTELEZ EZR T
g B T R )\ A A ] 2k HE
AT

(e)  SHAFZ T b fE0 A% JEL B

B G B AN AR W N 2 B R AR
Tl 48 B B AR K180% o 7 0 il 1 K%
Z W g AR AL 2 R B
M AEEEA BRI AL
LM EL S ITEEHESL
ok A 1A% ok D 2 JeRL B o A 4 [ AR
WFEAAE IR LR
KT EEGH - AREER L
5 TE3E T HEA T o 5 b I R A A AR
RN E T

AR H BT ET L8R B A M 2K
T A B A0 T A 18
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29 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(e)

(®

Annual Report 2009 4

<t il L K A BE B P (40

Commodity price risk on aluminum (continued) (e) SR A Z v 1A R B (A )
Sensitivity analysis 4 R 5 B
The following commodity price sensitivity is G P R R SRR T 4 AR AR A
calculated based on the outstanding aluminium HEHHZATEEPESS B
future contracts of the Group as at the balance sheet HEAHEREIND (—FEN
date, assuming 10% (2008: 10%) shift of future £:10%) FHAEWN
contract price is as follows:
2009 2008
R ZEEFNAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T IT
Profit increase as future contract B A R
price increased M7 A5 ¥ 1) 38 i 1,064 262
A 10% (2008: 10%) decrease in future contract MRl Hofth 2 = 4 A8 i &
prices of aluminium would have had the equal G AER T B10% (—FF N
but opposite effect on the above aluminium future 10% ) A% 3t bk 38 09 &5 & 40 WAL |
contracts to the amounts shown above, on the basis RPN ASE AR LB
that all other variables remain constant.
Fair values ) AR

All financial instruments are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2009 and 2008 because of the short
maturities of these instruments.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v

i S 11K B e 2= A
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T 5 R R W Rk

30 Commitments 30 KRB
(a) Capital commitments (a) & AR R
Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 /i U E It e E KD (N U % N 4
December not provided for in the financial TR B AT E AR -

statements were as follows:

2009 2008
SEEAE CEEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT L AN RWETIT

Contracted for ELRT4Y
— To build a new aluminium — I IR T ST
profile production base SR A A LR R
in Chengdu City 125,702 -
— To build a new aluminium — AR T ST
profile production base 600 A A B
in Yichun City 111,148 -
— Purchase of property, —F L =Kk E
plant and equipment for A R b B
the production base in ERY & ]
Sanshui District,
Foshan City 106,548 76,389
343,398 76,389
Authorised but not contracted for E IZHEH KFT4) 741480 - -
Total: At 1,084,878 76,389

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% % B A PR 2 W)
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30 Commitments (continued) 30
(b) Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases

(b) REBRMAKE

Bt A =4 B AR A
A8 7 L A4 B AT 19 A 2 A ARG A 4 AR AR

are payable as follows: e
2009 2008
SEFRA SEE NG
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥ T
Within 1 year —4ER 581 2,797

After one year but within two — AR AH W AR N

years - 415
581 3,212

31 Contingent liabilities 31 AR

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2009.

As at 31 December 2009, contingent liabilities of the
Company were as follows:

BREEFELFEFZH=1—H AL
M RKAR AT

REZEENEF A=A ARAZ
AR BRI -

The Company

A 4 T

2009 2008

“EE7E e N

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR T IT

Guarantees given to banks AN R A B A

by the Company in respect of banking By 2 R AT B0
facilities utilised ] SR AT 4 fit 2 o5 IR

by certain subsidiaries 572,830 444,000

As at the balance sheet date, the Directors do not consider
it probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under any of the guarantees.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% ¥ i A BR 2 v
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Material related party transactions 32

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the directors are
of the view that related parties of the Group include the

following individuals/companies:

Name of related party

o 11 B B e 2 W G

K BT A2 B

B A% S 5 i 2 L Al 3 0 I 456 % 19 58 o
KEEROD > AL F TR AEAT LT BEOR B U7 52
R

W E B EE T A= B
E S R A AT AL 28 A S
Wy -

Relationship with the Group

R EL LA 42 0 A £

LUO Su Controlling Shareholder
L S PERER R

LUO Riming Controlling Shareholder
B H PERE IR

LIAO Yuqing Controlling Shareholder
P PERERR

LUO Zhiyong

A 5
CHEN Hongzai

it P
Foshan Leahin Coating Co., Ltd. (“Leahin Coating”)
(1l Sr BB BRA D (1)
1l 57 B R AT BRA W] (TS B R ) ()
Xinggao Aluminium
(b LT B 82 26 A IR A T (0) (i)
b 1L i B 15 8 S AT R 7 () i)
Foshan Xinghui Ceramics Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Xinghui”)
(A 1 i MR P e A PR 7)) (1)
il 1L T B PR R A RR 2 W] (T BB ) (0)
Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”) (& 5B %8 556 M 2 G BR A 7)) (1)
i R BB P B A R W (TBEERERE ) ()
Xingfa Group

L 5% 4 [

Xingfa Innovation

LR

Close family member of a
Controlling Shareholder
PERE IR 2 BB
Key management personnel
of Xingfa Group
gty THERAR
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders
422 HE S R PR R AT
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders
422 IR R PR AT
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders
422 HE S SRR PR R AT
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders
422 IR SRR PR AT
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders
422 HE SRR PR R AT
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders

42 4 B R R A

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% ¥ Bt A PR 2 W)
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32 Material related party transactions 32 HABHEITRY #)
(continued)
i) The English translation of the company names is for (i) EEAVNRIES S AL S AF VE N
reference only. The official names of these companies are A 1 1E 202 7 F vh S04 Fil o
in Chinese.
(ii) Upon the completion of acquisition of 100% equity (ii) A S =2 AN S o = s RN = B 'S
interest of Xinggao Aluminium by the Group on 26 1 B 10 60 3 2 1009 B RE 58 1A% - By 6
July 2008, Xinggao Aluminium has become the wholly- ST RS T R LS 2 A A e A D T
owned subsidiary of Guangdong Xingfa and is no longer a B E H AN 5 AR SR 2 B e
related party of the Group from that date.
(a)  Transactions (a) 25
1)) Sales and purchase @) HE
2009 2008
SEFRA BN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥ T
Sales of goods to 8 B
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — BB G e 33,140 33,412
Purchases of raw s B MR B
materials from
— Leahin Coating — 37 BV R 8,124 12,623
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — DL O 916 -
Total HEt 9,040 12,623
(ii)  Rental income i)  MERA
2009 2008
—FF0E e S %S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T ARMT T
Leahin Coating a7 B - 80
Xingfa Curtain Wall BLBE T = 85

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL% 85 3% % it A B 2 v
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Material related party transactions

(continued)

(a) Transactions (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

32

0 5 R R W Rk

HERBET RS (#)

(@ R% (#)

Operating lease arrangements (i) A E A E L
2009 2008
REAE CFEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWF AR BT
Operating lease expenses i #8247
charged by
— Xingfa Group — B 6,630 8,113
— Xingfa Innovation — BILEE A Hr 2,101 2,603
— Xinggao Aluminium?* R - 3,083
Total HE 8,731 13,799
# Included in operating lease expenses # SR ATV

paid to Xinggao Aluminium were
operating lease expenses charged up to
the completion date of acquisition of
the entire equity interests in Xinggao
Aluminium by the Group in 2008.

Receipt on behalf of the Group

T 3 € 775 4 2 A I F I
BT A YL A
2 SR TE M A
2 REM %

Gv)  CEALEBYIRZ 5H

2009 2008

—FFNE ZERE )N\

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TIT AN RWET T

Xingfa Innovation L% R 787 -
Xingfa Group L A [ 2,858 -
Total My 3,645 -

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%§ 85 3% % it A PR 2 ¥
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32 Material related party transactions 32 HABHEITRY #)
(continued)
(a)  Transactions (continued) (a) R5 (4)
(v)  Financial guarantees )  HHEER

REFEH AEBCHZ

Certain banking facilities utilised by the

Group were guaranteed by the following A T ARATE B T S B
related parties as at the balance sheet date. Hefko
The Group
A 4
2009 2008
—FFNE . = %S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T AN RWET T
LUO Su, LUO Riming, BRERR AR H W) OB B
and LIAO Yuqing 30,000 259,600
Xingfa Group, LUO Su,  FLEEEE[E -~ ZE AR~
LUO Riming and B H OB KB B
LIAO Yuqing 238,800 243,513
Xingfa Group, Foshan Bl 2% A (] ~ {1 B
Xinghui, LUO Su, B RR - BRUL A
CHEN Hongzai, BEH W KB E B
LUO Riming and
LIAO Yuqing - 7,980
Total At 268,800 511,093
The Group did not issue financial N FEIE R ZFFIINE
guarantees to banks in respect of banking TZH =+ —H AL
facilities to either the related parties or third U SR AT A5 B 10 R 78 7 B
parties as at 31 December 2009 and 2008. =TI AR

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B%§ 85 3% % it A BR 2 v
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Material related party transactions

(continued)

(a)

Transactions (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Disposal of assets to Xingfa Curtain Wall
and Xingfa Group

The Group disposed of certain lease
prepayments, property, plant and equipment
and investment property to Xingfa Curtain
Wall at an aggregate consideration of
RMB23,000,000 during the year ended 31
December 2008.

On 30 December 2009, the Group and
Xingfa Group entered into an asset transfer
agreement pursuant to which the Group has
agreed to sell the foundation and structural
construction of the smelting production
lines and the related gas pipeline structures
at a cash consideration of RMB4,500,000.
The consideration has not been settled as at
31 December 2009.

Acquisition of equity interests of Xinggao
Aluminium

Pursuant to an extraordinary general
meeting held on 25 July 2008, the
shareholders approved the Group
to acquire 100% equity interests in
Xinggao Aluminium at a consideration
of RMB142,698,000 from LUO Zhiyong,
LUO Riming and LIAO Yuqing (the
“Acquisition”).

The Acquisition was completed on 26
July 2008 and Xinggao Aluminium has
become the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company since that date (Note 16).

32

o 11 B 85 e % W wE

HRBET RS (#)

(a)

2o (%)
(vi) [ ey e SR S I
B

(vii)

BE_ZTZANF+ A
=t HIEEE AL
AL A R #23,000,0007C
I B 20 s o 5 T AT AR
ERL/E RS =N & K
j<g7/E X

W oEFERENLF T A=+
H > A< 42 [ F L 3% 42 [ 57 7
R R o MR UL AN SR
BRI
4,500,0007C - B & ol A= 7
BB A A A W
B B e A R
WE+ZA=+—H %t
R

W it L g B S 2 I

W R =FENELH
o ok =X i
s oA o A 4 DA AL
18 N R #5142,698,0007C 7] 4
AT B H W KB R B
Bl 68 25 2 100% B HE (TR
W) o

e B —FFNE LA
TN HSER B A
WHERORAALAFAZ2E
Wt o~ \l (Mfate) o
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32 Material related party transactions 32 HABHEIRY #)

(continued)

(b) Balances with related parties (b) Bl [ 1 7 0 &5 B
As at the balance sheet date, the Group had the R EE T H > S SR T BBy 1Y) A R
following balances with related parties: e
@) Trade and other receivables 1)) X5 Je H Al W W 5k JH
2009 2008
—EFNhAE TERE N
RMB’000 RMB 000

AR TIC ANRHT T

Trade related B 5 A H
Xingfa Curtain Wall Hgss 4840 6,045
Non-trade related HIEE G A M
Xingfa Innovation AW 350 -
Xingfa Group BgEER 4,718 1,312
5,068 1,312
9,908 7,357
(ii)  Trade and other payables (i) 35 R H b JE 50 H
2009 2008
“EEME “EE)NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR EF N HT T
Trade related B 5 A
Leahin Coating a7 Bl R 2,286 3,001
The amounts due from/(to) related parties are JEU " (HEAT) B 3 J7 308 £ I 4K
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of 0~ Ao 5 L [ A 2 o
repayment.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v
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32 Material related party transactions 32 HABHEIRY 4#)
(continued)
(¢) Key management personnel compensation (c) FEERABEME
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEEMANA Z MG (BIEHES K
including the amounts paid to the Group’s directors B 5E 943 il i % 8 S AT T AR R B #E
as disclosed in Note 8 and the senior management FREBERANBNEE) T -

as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

2009 2008
SEREAE CEFAE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TIT ANRHT T

Short-term employee benefits LR B AR A 4,596 3,832
Contribution to retirement benefit & K4& F) 5 #1447
plan 58 39
4,649 3,871
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” P 4 A gE AN T B T AR | (M 7%
(Note 6(b)). 6(b)) °

33 Non-adjusting post balance sheet event 33 JEWBASGHARFEE

After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a final AR ERERIRERIRE
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 28(b). LR Y B 28 (b) R o
34 Comparative figures 34 HR#EY

As a result of the application of IAS 1 (revised 2007), E A B B B R A 198 (BB L AR
Presentation of financial statements, and IFRS 8, BAERT) [EAB IR T 29 | I B M B HS 3R
Operating segments, certain comparative figures have e QI B8R [RS8 43 & ) - B4y LB B
been adjusted to conform to current year’s presentation AR ) R Bl B A AR 2 R A 2
and to provide comparative amounts in respect of items SR R JUAE T IR VE B R 2 TH H dR it
disclosed for the first time in 2009. Further details of these OB BT o T B A B RS e

developments are disclosed in note 3.
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35

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A B 2 v

Significant accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the
judgements and other uncertainties affecting application
of those policies and the sensitivity of reported results to
changes in condition and assumptions are factors to be
considered when reviewing these financial statements. The
principal accounting policies are set forth in note 2. The
Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used
in the preparation of these financial statements.

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual

value.

The Group reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation
expense for future years is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimation.

35

K & w6 EBOH B

A 2 S A I A A B B - S % A A A
B S AN 3R (LA 3R A 1 2 15 B
) AR Al s L B e

T 8 [ 5% 55 A 5 i 3 IR 7 22 5 T8 EE K @t
B 2 9 T 52 B A wt R T
vabill WE R ENIISEREPYI S E
BRE S ZEW RSB TR £ 5
B RFECR OO W RE2 o A RS TS
R E FI BRI RAE i 552 55 B85 ik 3R Ry
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b)

Impairments

()

(i1)

(iii)

In considering the impairment losses that
may be required for certain property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments,
recoverable amount of these assets needs
to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the net selling price and
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling price because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be
readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of turnover
and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of
items such as turnover and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are assessed and provided based
on the directors’ regular review of aging
analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A
considerable level of judgment is exercised
by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of
each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment losses would affect the net
profit or loss in future years.

Impairment losses for inventories are
assessed and provided based on the
directors’ regular review of market price
against inventories costs. A considerable
level of judgment is exercised by the
directors when assessing the market price.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment losses would affect the net
profit or loss in future years.

35

o 11 B 85 e % W wE

K it Bt B (s

(b)

Tk A

()

(i1)

(iii)

T RS BB
Ko TEASH AR 48 14 9 A 1R IR
7L 5 W% 55 L 114 AT i [
B o AT i [e] G 2 1
(IR E A (SR RN
RALREHUAT %5 EE LA
T35 A > WO LAOKS e A 5T
5 o A (8 T RIS TR
1A ] T 4 B AL R I
B B R > 7 2O 3
BHKY B 1 R A 4 A IR
ERERCIONE s S
T — U0 Al R i
W 18] BROH 2 A B 4
R 3B S B A S
T H 2 & B H W] DL S
ZARBCRNFE A i 2 Al wE o

IR IR BB s 4R 1% 2 o 1)
At B4 B i 2 A R AT s ) AR
JEE Al HEAT WAL S A o 3B
HAE AT 2 %5 9 1E AR AR
T 388 0 SR A S R 1 K
H B o

b (R 4L 4 50 4
73R A 1 60 5
4 1

A B I Al 4% 2
T {8 S A7 B AR B M HE AT
A B % A o 2 T AR R Al T
B ZRUAT o R ) oy

b 9 (L 4 9 A T 4 8
B ER AR B 1 AN B
HEE -
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36

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL%§ 85 3% % i A BR 2 v

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued of the following amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the accounting year ended 31 December 2009 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

36

REBEE_FFIET A
=+ — H 1k 4 B B AR i B R A2
g%f@ﬂ‘%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ@?ﬁﬁ
R}E’

e Sp R E ORI JE R RN S i
HIZE B & O RO TR E —FE N
T = B e Rk AR R R AR R
MEERT ~ i M B B R T AR o A I
PRAN G2 S5 A R~ B ) B R R

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

A H Mk 1%

B 4 Y &7 w20 I A 2

IFRS 3 (Revised), Business combinations 1 July 2009
IR % B 5 s E R BB 3E (MERT) - EE A F “EERNELH—H
Amendments to IAS 27, Consolidated and separate Financial statements 1 July 2009
B Y RSS2 7SR AE WT A AR A KM R T R “EENEELAH
Amendments to IAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement 1 July 2009
B e wE R R SE30SR BRI A il LA - AR R Al “EERELA—H
IFRIC 17, Distribution of non-cash assets to owners 1 July 2009
WP A e R R B BT A N IR B i B “EENFELHH

Improvement to IFRSs 2009

S A U B R S o R 2 RO

Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based payment — Group
cash-settled share-based payment transaction

Y S 5 ot YE WSR2 SR AE ST AR » LU 19 79 FE 8 2 1 5 — 25 [ LU B 22 4 3

LUB 3 73 ZEREZ 1 % 47

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Company’s results of operations and

financial position.

1 July 2009 or

1 January 2010
ZETNFEELH —HE
S

1 January 2010
SE A A
A A B I RV TE U 1 OCE R SE A R I ]
M5B o2 4 M k> AR ERE 5 SR A LAt

R~ B e BN B R AN
) 56 8 SRR S B B AR DL
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Five Years Summary

2009 2008 2007 2006 2003
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
BB CERNE ZERLE DERERE ZEERNE
ARBTLE ARETT ARETLT ARETLT ARETL
Assets and liabilities B kA
Property, plant and equipment VEN GYE L 531,824 351,713 139,007 191,847 202,280
Investment property BEmE = - - 3,756 3,943
Lease prepayments AR 295,753 153,661 - 81,484 83,162
Deferred tax assets ALHIIH G 16,075 390 - - 465
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE/ (AE) FH 131,149 157,998 376,321 75,388 (37,899)
Total assets less current A RO B AL
liabilities 974,801 663,762 515,328 352,475 251,951
Non-current liabilities RN (258,587) - (80,000) (235) -
Net assets B 716,214 663,762 435,328 352,240 251,951
Capital and reserves B A B ik
Share capital L& 3,731 3,731 210,000 225,000 155,041
Reserves fi 712,483 660,031 225,328 98,101 68,683
Total equity attributable to ARV RRERE A
equity holders of the Company  JE ) HE 25 44 %6 716,214 663,762 435,328 323,101 223,724
Minority interests D R R A - - - 29,139 28,227
Total equity HE 25 4 716,214 663,762 435328 352,240 251,951
Operating results REEL
Turnover BEH 1,871,480 2,136,368 2,148,674 1,861,244 1,309,103
Profit before taxation e 5 i A 81,696 38,017 290,923 66,164 36,877
Income tax (expenses)/credit sl (B0) /1% (11,488) (8,704) 677 (5.875) (11,062)
Profit for the year A B Y 70,208 29,313 291,600 60,289 25815
Attributable to: W g
Equity holders of the Company A/ i) R HEFE A A 70,208 29,313 291,750 59,377 24774
Minority interests DB O = - (150) 912 1,041
Profit for the year A JE Y 70,208 29,313 291,600 60,289 25,815
Basic and diluted earnings per % it 5 A J% # % 2 A1
share (RMB yuan) (AR#¥L) 0.168 0.075 0.937 0.191 0.080

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED $%§ § 25 B 5 A i 2 7]
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Five Years Summary
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Notes:

()

(ii)

(iif)

(@iv)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED BL% 85 3% % it A B 2 v

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
13 September 2007 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to the
Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of the
Group on 29 February 2008.

Although the Reorganisation was not completed until 29 February
2008, the Group is regarded as a continuing group resulting from
the Reorganisation. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the basis that the Company has been treated as
the holding company of the Group since 1 January 2005, rather
than from 29 February 2008. Accordingly, the consolidated results
of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2009 have
been prepared as if the Aluminium Profile Business had been
operated by the subsidiaries now comprising the Group and the
group structure immediately after the Reorganisation had been in
existence since 1 January 2005. This financial summary includes
the consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries now
comprising the Group with effect from 1 January 2005 or since
their respective dates of incorporation, whichever is a shorter
period. The consolidated balance sheets at 31 December 2005,
2006, 2007 are the combination of the balance sheets of the
Company and its subsidiaries now comprising the Group at 31
December 2005, 2006 and 2007. In the opinion of the directors,
the resulting consolidated financial statements give a more
meaningful view of the results and state of affairs of the Group as
a whole.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the three years
ended 31 December 2005, 2006 and 2007 is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company and the 311,410,000
shares in issue as at the date of the Prospectus, as if the shares
were outstanding throughout the entire period.

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

ik

()

(ii)

(iif)

(@iv)
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Suite 1513, 15/F, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEBNERDIBGEHBRAEECE15121513%
Tel E5E: 852-2175 5388 Fax {8&: 852-2175 5383

No. 23 Renhe Road, Nanzhuang Town, Chancheng District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province, China (Postcode: 528061)
FREIER A L B R R i A MEX235% (ZB4R: 528061)
Tel E5E: 86-757-8533 2727 Fax {£H.: 86-757-8538 7628

Website #31E: www.xingfa.com
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